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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

GOVERNOR'S COMMISSION ON ALCOHOL & OTHER DRUGS

Lori A Sbibfnelte '29 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
ComnbsiODer 603-271-9564 1-800-S04-0909

Fax: 603-271-6105 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nb.gov/dcbcs/bdas

April 7, 2021

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health,
on behalf of the Governor's Commission on Alcohol and Other Drugs, to enter into a Sole Source
amendment to an existing contract with New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse Counselor
Association d/b/a New Hampshire Training Institute on Addictive Disorders {VC#170428-B001),
Concord, New Hampshire for training, education and programming for the Alcohol and Other Drug
Continuum of Care workforce, by increasing the price limitation by $135,000 frorri $461,900 to
$596,900 with no change to the contract completion date of June 30, 2022 effective upon
Governor and Council approval. 51.05% Federal Funds. 12.05% General Funds. 36.90% Other
Funds (Governor Commission).

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on August 26. 2020, item
#16.

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2021, and are
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2022, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items
within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office,
if needed and justified.

See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because the price limitation is increasing by more than 10%
of the original contract amount with no change to the contract completion date. The additional
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration State Opioid Response grant
funding was not awarded to the Department in time to neither include the additional grant funding
in the original contract, nor competitively procure. The additional education and training
components in the amendment are being added to sen/ices that the Contractor is currently
providing.

The purpose of this request is to provide additional high-quality competency and skills-
based professional development activities that address the needs of the State's Alcohol and Other
Drug Continuum of Care system workforce.

New Hampshire lacks the workforce capacity to provide needed Alcohol and Other Drug
Continuum of Care system workforce prevention: early-intervention; treatment; and recovery
support services to meet the growing need for services. High turnover rates; worker shortages;

The Department of Health and Human Struices' Mission is to join communities and families
■ in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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an aging workforce; Inadequate compensation; and stigma have created a workforce crisis In the
field. The continued improvement and transformation of the Alcohol and Other Drug Continuum
of Care system and Integration with primary and behavioral healthcare depend entirely on a
workforce that is adequate in size, as vireil as trained and supported, to meet the needs of
Individuals vtrho seek substance use disorder treatment services.

The Contractor provides training to the Partnership for Success workforce, which Includes
Student Assistance and Substance Misuse Prevention professionals. The Contractor also
provides the scholarships to national training events for the Partnership for Success workforce.
The Contractor will also be conducting a two (2)-day virtual symposium on State Oploid Response
grant-related topics at no cost to all registrants.

The Department will monitor contracted services using post-event surveys and monthly
progress reports.

As referenced in Exhibit A, Revisions to Standard Contract Provisions of the original
contract, the parties have the option to extend the agreement for up to two (2) additional years,
contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties and
Governor and Council approval. The Department is not exercising its option to renew at this time.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, vital high-quality training
events will not occur, leaving an already under capacity and compromised workforce with fewer
opportunities for growth and learning. The missed opportunities vrould be detrimental to the
delivery of services and supports to individuals and families impacted by substance misuse.

Area served: Statewide

Source of Funds: CFDA # 93,243 FAIN SP020796 and CFDA #93.788 FAIN TI081685

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Lorl A. Shibinette

Commissioner



05-95-92-920510-33820000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND

ALCOHOL, GOVERNOR COMMISSION FUNDS (100% Other Funds

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2021 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
92058501

$110,119 $0 $110,119

2022 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
92058501

$110,119 $0 $110,119

Subtotal $220,238 $0 $220,238

05-95-92-920510-33840000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND
ALCOHOL, CLINICAL SERVICES (66% Federal Funds 34% General Funds)

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised
Budget

2021 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
92057501

$105,831 $0 $105,831

2022 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
92057501

$105,831 $0 $105,831

Subtotal $211,662 $0 $211,662

05-95-92-920510-33950000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND
ALCOHOL, PARTNERSHIP FOR SUCCESS GRANT (100% Federal Funds)

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2021 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
92052407

$15,000 $10,000 $25,000

2022 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
92052407

$0 $0 $0

Subtotal $15,000 $10,000 $25,000



05-95-92-920510-70400000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND
ALCOHOL, NH STATE OPIOID RESPONSE GRANT (100% Federal Funds)

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2021 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
92057040

$15,000 $0 $15,000

2021 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
92057046

$0 $25,708 $25,708

2022 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
92057046

$0 $99,292 $99,292

2022 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
92057048

$0 $0 $0

2022 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
TBD

$0 $0 $0

Subtotal $15,000 $125,000 $140,000

Total $461,900 $135,000 $596,900
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1

This Amendment to the Training for Alcohol and Other Drug (ADD) Workforce contract is by and between
the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and
New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse Counselor Association d/b/a New Hampshire Training Institute
on Addictive Disorders ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on. August 26, 2020, (Item #16), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms
and conditions specified in the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 17 the Contract may be amended
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties.agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$596,900.

2. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services, Section 1, Statement of Work, Subsection 1.2., Paragraph
1.2.2., Subparagraph 1.2.2.1., Part 1.2.2.1.1., to read:

1.2.2.1.1. A minimum of 64 live, professional development training events with in-person and
virtual attendance options, that include, but are not limited to skill building practice
series and targeted training for emerging issues, with at least six (6) events being
offered in the northern regions of NH.

3. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services, Section 1, Statement of Work, Subsection 1.2., Paragraph
1.2.2, Subparagraph 1.2.2.2., Part 1.2.2.2.1., to read:

1.2.2.2.1. A minimum of 59 live, professional development training events with in-person and
virtual attendance options, that include, but are not limited to skill building practice
series and targeted training for emerging issues, with at least six (6) events being
offered in the northern regions of NH.

4. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services, Section 1, Statement of Work, Subsection 1.15., to read:

1.15. The Contractor shall administer a process to award scholarships through September
30, 2021, to individuals for whom cost to attend SOR-funded trainings and/or SOR-
related training events is a barrier; ensuring final determination of awards are approved
by the Department.

5. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services, Section 1, Statement of Work by adding Subsection 1.23 to
read:

1.23. The Contractor shall conduct a two-day virtual symposium for up to 350 participants.
The Contractor shall:

1.23.1. Ensure each day of the virtual symposium has a duration of at least three (3)
hours;

1.23.2. Collaborate with the Department to determine training topics.

1.23.3. Collaborate with the Department to identify and obtain qualified presenters for

/•—OS
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New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse
Counselor Association d/b/a New Hampshire
Training Institute on Addictive Disorders Contractor Initials
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both days.

1.23.4 Market the two-day symposium.

1.23.5. Manage session content.

1.23.6. Provide all logistics for the event.

1.23.7. Ensure the event is available at no cost to all registrants.

1.23.8. Ensure the event takes place before September 30, 2021.

6. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 3., to read:

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be In accordance with the approved line item, as
specified in Exhibits C-1, Amendment #1 Budget through Exhibit C-2, Amendment #1
Budget.

3.1 Payment for Partnership for Success grant activities referenced in Exhibit B, Scope
of Services, Section 1, Statement of Work, Paragraph 1.1.2. shall be on a cost
reimbursement basis for allowable activities through June 30, 2021.

3.2. Payment for NH State Opiold Response grant activities referenced in Exhibit B,
Scope of Services, Section 1, Statement of Work, Paragraph 1.1.3. shall be on a
cost reimbursement basis for allowable activities through September 29, 2021.

7. Modify Exhibit C-1, Budget by replacing it in its entirety with Exhibit 0-1, Amendment #1 Budget,
which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein..

8. Modify Exhibit 0-2, Budget by replacing it in its entirety with Exhibit 0-2, Amendment #1 Budget,
which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse
Counselor Association d/b/a New Hampshire
Training Institute on Addictive Disorders Contractor Initials

RFP-2021-BDAS-05-TRAIN-01-A01 Page2of4 Date_^^^°^^
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All terms and conditions of the Contract not modified by this Amendment remain in full force and effect.
This Amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

4/7/2021

^DocuSlgn«d by:

KjUjA
K ..j^EC>9D05&04Ce3442Date Name: Katja fox

Director

New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse
Counselor Association d/b/a New Hampshire
Training Institute on Addictive Disorders

-ObcuSign«d by:

4/7/2021 '
rx . k, -LlbWIUJUUI-Myz..
Date Name: Linda Brewer

Title. President BOD

New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse
Counselor Association d/b/a New Hampshire
Training Institute on Addictive Disorders Amendment #1
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

DocuSigned by:

4/8/2021

Date NamW'^^&ffe Pi nos
Title. Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: ^ {date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse
Counselor Association d/b/a New Hampshire
Training Institute on Addictive Disorders Amendment #1

RFP-2021-BDAS-05-TRAIN-01-A01 Page 4 of 4
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Exhibit C-1, Amendment #1

Budget

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

NH Alcohol & Drug Abus* Counselors Assodetion

BldderfProgrem Name: d/b/s New Hampshire Training Institute on Addictive Disorders

Budget Request for Training for Alcohol and Other Drug Wortdorce
/

Budget Period: SFY2021' July 1, 202IKAine 30. 2021

Total Program Cost — Contractor Share / Match V  > Fundad by UHHS contractshare -  1 •

Line Item Direct Indlreci Total Direct Indirect Total i'r jr DirKt indirect Total

1. Total SaiaivAVages i .  157,399.00 i S  1S7,389.X 57,0X.X i 57.0X.X S IX,399.x 8 8

2. Emolovee Benefits $ 34,628.W $ $  34.628.x $■ 12.540.X s s 12,540.x $ 22.0e8.X 8 8

s 48,550.00 $ $  48.5S0.X S 14,0X.X j $ 14.0X.X % . 34.550.x 8 8 34.550.x

4. . Eouipmeni:
s 100.00 $ S  1X.X s 1X.X $ s 1X.X $ $ 8

Repeir end Maintenance $ 100.00 i $  1X.X S 1X.X $ s 1X.X s 8 8

Purchase/Depreciation .s 3.000.00 $ S  3,0X.X 2.4X.X 5 s 2,4X.X $ 6X.X 8 8 .

Educadonal s 1,840.00 s s 1.840.x s 4X.X S s 4X.X s 1,440.x 8 8 1.440.x

Medical

Office s  • 2,610.00 $ % 2.610.x -$-■ . 1,410.x s $ 1.410.x $- 1,2X.X 8 8  1,2X.X

6- Travel i 6,370.00 S i 6.576.06 2,5X.X s s 2.5X.X 3,870.x 8

7. Occupancy i 28,300.00 $ s 28.3X.X s 1S.3X.X $ s 15,3X.X % 13,0X.X $

S. Current Expenses -

% 1.500.00 $ $ 1.5X.X s 7X.X s s 7X.X •s ax.x 8 8  8X.X

i 200.00 s s 2X.X i $ s i 2X.X 8 8  2X.X

s 2,553.00 $ s 2,553.x s 1X.X s s 1X.X 8 2,4X.X 8 8  2.403.X

Audit and Legal s - 1,400.00 $ s 1.4X.X $ '  6X.X $ s 6X.X 8 - 8X.X 8 8  WO.X

Insurance s 3,600.00 s s 3,6X.X $ 1,2X.X $ s 1.2X.X S .2,4X.X 8 8  2.4X.X

$ .250.00 s % 2X.X $ w.x s $ X.X 2X.X 8 8  2X.X

10. Marketir>a/Communicat)on$ S -  --5.700.00 s s 5.7X.X s 3.2X.X s s 3.2X.X 2,5X.X 8 8  2,5X.X

11. Staff Education and Trainlrtg s 1,300.00 S s 1.3X.X s SX.X s s 5X.X 8X.X 8 8  ax.x

s 19.000.00 s s IS.OX.X s 7,0X.X J s 7,0X.X 8 I2,0X.X 8 8  12.0X.X

13. Other Isoeciflc details mandatorv): -

CE Applications i • -.475.00 s s 475.x s 75.x i s 75.x 8 •- - 4X.X 8 8  4X.X

Food/Venue Rental .s 2,575.00 $ s 2,575.x $ 2,275.x % s 2,275.x 8 3X.X 8 8  SX.X

Particpant Ponal/LMS hosting s 1.500.00 s s 1,5X.X $  . I.SX.X s $ I.SX.X 8 • 8

$ 10,000.00 s s lO.OX.X s i $ 10.0X.X 8 8  10,0X.X

Data Securitv s 2,000.00 s s 2.0X.X s 2.0X.X $ $ 2,0X.X S 8 8

BOAS SMii-eulidina Taigeted s 6,000.00 s $ o.ox.x s - $ s 8 6.0X.X 8 8  6,0X.X

PFS Tanieted s 25.000.00 s $ 25.0X.X 5 $ $ 25,0X.X 8 S  25,0X.X

s 5.708.x s s S.70S.X s  - s $ $ 5,7X.X 8 8  5,7X.X

SOR Targded % n.ox.x $ s n.ox.x s % s n.ox.x 8 8  n.ox.x

SOR Scholarships s 5.0X.X $ s S.0X.X s s s $ .. s.ox.x 8 8  5,0X.X

SOR Subcontracts/Agteemenis J ' ig.ox.x $ s ig.ox.x s - s s . 8 ig.ox.x 8 8  19.0X.X

TOTAL s 406,658.M ( s 406,658.x s 12S.0X.M % $ 125,0M.X S 281.es8.X 8

Indirect As A Percent of Direct

NH AlcQhal Drug Abuse Counselors Association
d/b/a New Hampshire Training Institute on Addicih« Disorders
RFP-2021-BDAS-05-TRAIN^1-AD1
E>M>llC-l. Amendment *1 Budget
Page 1 of 1

Contractor initials

4/7/2021
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Exhibit C-2 Amendment #2

Budget

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

NH A(coho( & Drug Abuse Counselors Association
Bidder/Program Name: dft)/a New Hampshire Training Institute on Addictive Disorders

Budget Request for; Training for Alcohol and Other Drug Wortcforce

Budget Period: SFY2022 July 1.2021-June 30.2022

Total Program Cost Contractor Share / Match Funded by DHHS contract share

Line Item Direct indirect Total Direct Indirect Total Direct Indirect Total

1. Total SaiaryfWaqes S .168,874.00 S s 168.874.00 S 57.000.00 $ % 57.000.00 $ 111,874.00 S % 111,874.00

2. Emplovee Benefits S 37.153.00 S $ 37.153.00 S 12.540.00 $ s 12.540.00 $  24,613.00 $ % 24,613.00

3. Consultants s 37.550.00 $ i 37.550.00 s 18.000.00 $ s 18.000.00 $ 19,550.00 $ s 19,550.00

4. Equipment:

Rental $ 100.00 s $ 100.00 s . 100.00 $ s 100.00 $ $ $

Repair and Maintenance s 100.00 s $ 100.00 s 100.00 $ s 100.00 S - $ $ •

Purchase/Depredation s 3,000.00 $ 5 3.000.00 $  2.400.00 $ s 2.400.00 $ - . 600.00 S s 600.00

5. Supplies:

Educational -$ 2.340.00 $ s 2.340.00 S  ..900.00 $ s 900.00 $ i.44o:oo $ $ 1,440.00

Lab

Pharmacv

Medical -

Office S  2.110.00 $ S  2,110.00 s .910.00 $ s 910.00 s 1,200.00 $ S  1.200.00

6. Travel J  - 7,370.00 $ i  7,370.00 s 2,500.00 S s 2,500.00 s 4,870.00 $ %  4,870.00

7. Occupancv S  - 29,300.00 $ $  29.300.00 s 15.300. W $ s 15,300.00 5 -. T 14.000.00 $ $  14,000.00

d. Current Expenses

Telephone $  1,500.00 $ S  1.500.00 s 700.00 $ s 700.00 S 800.00 $ S  800.00

Poslaqe • $ . - .200.00 s S  200.00 $ $ s - S •  200.00 $ S  200.00

Subscriptions S. 2.553.00 $ S  2.553.00 $- 150.00 S $ 150.00 $ •  2,403.00 $ $  2.403.00

Audit and Leoal $  1,400.00 $ S  1,400.00 s 600.00 $ $ 600.00 $ 800.00 $ S  800.00

Insurance 5  3,600.00 s $  3.600.00 $ 1.200.00 s $ 1.200.00 $ 2,400.00 $ S  2.400.00

Board Expenses

9. Software $  -'250.00 s S  250.00 $• •  ■ 50-00 $ $ 50.00 $ 200.00 $ S  200.00

to. Marltetlna/Communicalions $  5,700.00 $ $  5,700.00 $ 3,200.00 $ $ 3.200.00 $ • 2.500.00 $ S  2.500.00

11. Staff Education arxl Traininq $  • 1,300.00 s S  1,300.00 $ 500.00 $ s 500.00 s 800.00 $ S  600.00

12. Subcontracts/Aqreements .$ 15,000.00 $ $  15.000.00 $ 3,000.00 s s 3.000.00 s 12.000-00 % S  12.000.00

13. Other (soeciftc details mandaiory): >

CE Applications S  475.00 s $  475.00 $  75.00 $ $. 75.00 s 400.00 $ S  400.00

FoodA/erxje Rental $  2.575.00 $ $  2.575.00 $ 2,275.00 $ $ 2.275.00 $ 300.00 s i  300.00

Particpant Portal/LMS hostinq S  .1.500.00 $ $  1.500.00 s 1,500.00 s s 1.500.00 $ $ s

Scfiolarsfiips S  12.000.00 s S  12.000.00 s - $ s - s 12.000.00 $ $  12.000.00

Data Security $  2.000.00 s S  2.000.00 $ -  2,000.00 $ $ 2.000.00 $ r, s s

BOAS Skill-Buiidinq Tarqeted S  3.000.00 $ $  3.000.00 s - $ s - s 3.000.00 $ S  3,000.00

PFS Tarqeted $ s s $ $ $ $ $ s

SOR Admin $  - 8.679.00 $ S  8.679.00 $ $ $ $ -  8.679.00 $ S  8,679.00

SCR Purch/Depredation 2.000.00 $ S  2.000.00 $ $ s 2.000.00 s $  2.000.00

SOR Occupancv S  1.664.00 $ $  1.664.00 $ $ s s 1.664.00 $ S  1.664.00

SOR MarKetinq/CommunicaUons S  300.00 s S  300.00 $  - $ $ $ 300.00 $ $  300.00

SOR Tarqeted S  • 18,649.00 $ i  18.649.00 $ $ $ $ 18.649.00 $ $  16,649.00

SOR Sdtdarships S  23,000.00 $ $  23.000.00 $ $ $ $ 23,000.00 $ $  23.000.00

SOR Contracts/Aqreements i  45.000.00 $ S  45,000.00 $ - $ $ - $ 45,000.00 % S  4S.OOO.(X}

TOTAL- $  440.242.00 s $  440,242.00 $ 125.000.00 % $ 125.000.00 % 315,242.00 s S  315,242.00

Indirect As A Percent of Direct

NH Alcohol Drug Abuse Courtselors Association

d/b/a New Hampshire Traning hstitute on Addictive

RFP-2021-BDAS-05-TRA1N-01-A01

Exhibit C-2. Amendment #1 Budget

Page i of 1
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Disorders

Ccniractor Initials

Date
4/7/2021
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that NFW HAMPSHIRE ALCOHOL

AND DRUG ABUSE COUNSELORS ASSOCIATION is a New Hampshire Nonproni Corporation registered to transact business

in New Hampshire on November 26. 1985.! further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's ofllce

have been received and is in good standing as far as this olTice is concerned.

Business ID: 89242

Certificate Number: 0005341892

B&.

o

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affi.\ed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 7th day of April A.D. 2021.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner. Sccrctar>' of State ofihe State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that NEW HAMPSHIRE TRAINING

INSTITUTE ON ADDICTIVE DISORDERS is a New Hampshire Trade Name registered to transact business in New

Hampshire on October 22. 2010. I further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's olTice have been

received and is in good standing as far as this ofllcc is concerned.

Business ID: 637806

Certificate Number; 0005341907

O/s
'h

SB.

"0

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOE,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be afilxcd

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 7th day of April A.D. 2021.

William M,. Gardner

Secretary' of State
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

1, Christine McKenna . hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected ClerkySecretary/Officer of New Hampshire Alcohol & Druo Abuse Counselors Association.
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on January 28. 2021. at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

(Date)

VOTED: That Linda Brewer. President (may list more than one person)
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

is duly authorized on behalf of New Hampshire Alcohol & Druo Abuse Counselors Association to enter into
(Nanhe of Corporation/ LLC)

contracts or agreements with the State of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is
authorized to execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions,
or modifications thereto, which may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains In full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate Is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
posltion(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind ttne corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

PatRd: ma.
Signature of Elected Officer
Name: Christine McKenna

Title: Board Secretary

Rev. 03/24/20
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ACCORD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certincate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer'rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

Byse Insurance - Laconia

208 Union Avenue

Laconia NH 03246

CONTACT Lorena Sneli

(800)639-2973 (603)524-0748

annRFAs- Loretta(ghpminsurance.com

IN$URER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC*

INSURER A: CNA Insuraoce

INSURED

NH Alcohol & Drug Abuse Counselors Association

NH Training Institute on Addictive Disorders

130 Pembroke Road, Suite 100

CONCORD NH 03301

INSURER B - Travelers Property Casualty Co of America (A/R)
INSURER c • Ck'zsTis of Illinois 10714

INSURER 0:

INSURER E :

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

POLICY EXP
IMlyUDOn'YYYlTYPE OF INSURANCE

ADDL

INSD

5UBR

VWD POLICY NUMBER
POLICY EFF

IMM/OOri'YYYI LIMITSINSR
LTR

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MADE X OCCUR

GENT AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

POLICY

OTHER:

LOC

6025655757 06/30/2020 06/30/2021

EACH OCCURRENCE

DAMAGE TO RENTED
PREMISES tEa occurranea)

MEO EXP (Any oo« penon)

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY

GENERALAGGREGATE

PRODUCTS • COMP/OPAGG

BAIL

2.000.000

300.000

10,000

2.000,000

d.000,000

4.000.000

S 1,000

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

ANYALTTO

COMBINED SINGLE UMIT
(Ea acctdenU

S 1,000,000

X

BODILY INJURY (Pef parson)

OWNED

AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

SCHEDULED

AUTOS
NON-OWNED

AUTOS ONLY

BODILY INJURY (Per acddeni)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per aeddenl)

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

DED

OCCUR- •

CLAIMS-MADE

EACH OCCURRENCE

AGGREGATE

RETENTION S

WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

ANY PROPRIETORJPARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory in NH)
lives, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

STATUTE
OTH
ER-

s 6JUB0413N90820 05/03/2020 05/03/2021
E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

100,000

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE
100,000

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY UMIT
500.000

Misc Professional Liability
LHVH29508300 06/30/2020 06/30/2021

Per Occurrence

Aggregate

Deductible

1,000.000

3.000,000

1.000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS I LOCATIONS/VEHICLES (ACORO 101, Additional Remarks Schedolt, may be attached If more Space Is required)

Work performed during policy period. States for which statutory Workers Compensation Is provided: NH

State of NH Department of Health and Human Services

129 Pleasant Street

Concord NH 03301-3857
1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03) The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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/

%

f\ ^ New Hampshire Alcohol & Drug Abuse Counselors Association
"  \ New Hampshire Training Institute on Addictive Disorders

130 Pembroke Road, Suite 100, Concord, NH 03301
603-225-7060 NHADACA.ORG

Mission Statement

NHADACA's mission is to provide quality education,
workforce development, advocacy, ethical standards and
leadership for addiction professionals. We empower
efforts in prevention treatment and recovery.
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NEW HAMPSHIRE ALCOHOL AND DRUG

ABUSE COUNSELORS ASSOCIATION

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2019 and 2018.
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ROWLEY & ASSOCIATES, P.C.

CERTiriED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

46 NORTH STATE STREET

CONCORD. NEW HAMPSHIRE03301

MKMBER TELEPHONE(603) 228-5400 MEMBER OF THE Private
AMERICAN Institute Of Fax #(603) 226-3532 Companies Practice Section

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDRPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Directors

New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse Counselors Association
Concord, New Hampshire 03301

We have audited the accompanying financial statements New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse Counselors Association's (the
Association), which comprise the statement of financial position as of December 31, 2019 and the related statement of activities and
changes in net assets, functional expenses and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibiiit)' is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of New
Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse Counselors Association as of December 31. 2019 and the changes in its net assets and its cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse Counselors Association's 2018 financial stalenients, and we
expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those audited financial statements in our report dated April 18, 2019. In our opinion, the
summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended December 31, 2018, is consistent, in all material
respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has been derived.

Rowley «fe Associates, P.C.
Concord, New Hampshire
May 12, 2020
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NEW HAMPSHIRE ALCOHOL AND DRUG

ABUSE COUNSELORS ASSOCIATION

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

DECEMBER 31, 2019 WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR 2018
See Independent Auditors' Report

Ncl Assets Wiilioiil Net Assets With

Donor Restrictions Donor Restrictions

ASSETS

2019 2018

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents $
Accounts receivable

Prepaid expense

178,044 $

980

6,104

31,608 3:  209,652 5

980

6.104

;  191,679

7,364

6,180

185,128 31.608 216,736 205,223

FURNITURE AND EQUIPMENT, at cost

Less accumulated depreciation

. 76,552

(61,170)

-
76,552

(61,170)

66,570

(53;149)

15,382 - 15,382 13.421

LONG TERM ASSETS

Security deposit 2,800 2,800 2.800

Total Assets 203,310 31,608 234,918 221,444

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accrued expenses 1,431 1,431 3.357

1,431 - 1,431 ■3,357

NET ASSETS

Without donor restrictions
With donor restrctions

201,879
31.608

201,879
31,608

183,016
35.071

201,879 " 31,608 233,487 218,087

Total liabilities and net assets $ 203,310 $ 31,608 $  234,918 $  221,444

See Notes to Financial Statements
.9.
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NEW HAMPSHIRE ALCOHOL AND DRUG

ABUSE COUNSELORS ASSOCIATION

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR 2018

See independent Auditors' Report

2019

Net Assets Without

Donor Restrictions

Net Assets With

Donor Restrictions Total

2018

Total

Revenue

Grant revenue S 51 1,034 $ 18,586 $ 529,620 S 418,268

Contributions, in-kind 8,555 - 8,555 11,150

Training fees 145.258 - 145,258 106,277

Co-sponsorships 2,500 - 2,500 8,184

Membership fees 7,104 - 7,104 8,71 1

Merchandise sales, net of

direct costs of $0 50 - 50 1 1 1

Other revenue 4,404 - 4,404 889

Total revenues 678,905 18,586 697,491 553,590

Net assets released from

donor imposed restrictions 31,608 (31,608) - -

Expenses

Program expenses 652,568 - 652.568 513,866

Administrative expenses 24,340 24,340 20,875

Fundraising 5,183 - 5,183 2,384

Total expenses 682,091 682,091 537,125

Increase (Decrease) in net assets 18,863 (3,463) 15,400 16,465

Net assets, beginning of year 183,016 35,071 218,087 201,622

Net assets, end of year $ . 201,879 $ 31,608 $ 233,487 $ 218,087

See Notes to Financial Statements

•3-
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NEW HAMPSHIRE ALCOHOL AND DRUG

ABUSE COUNSELORS ASSOCIATION

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 3 U 2019 AND 201
See Independent Auditors' Report

2019 2018

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Increase (decrease) in net assets $  15,400 $  16,465

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to
net cash provided by operating activities:

Disposal of furniture & equipment - 2,189

Depreciation 8,021 8,916

(Increase) decrease in operating assets:
Accounts receivable 6,384 2,165

Prepaid expenses 76 (1,171)

Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities;
Accrued expenses (1,926) 3,357

Net cash provided by operating activities 27,955 31,921

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Net cash paid for furniture & equipment (9,982) (3,105)

Net cash (used) by investing activities (9,982) (3,105)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 17,973 28,816

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 191,679 162,863

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 209,652 $  191,679

See Notes to Financial Statements

-4-
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NEW HAMPSHIRE ALCOHOL AND DRUG

ABUSE COUNSELORS ASSOCIATION

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018

See Independent Auditors'Report

2019 2018

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

In-kind contributions $ 8,555 $ 11,150

Non-cash contributions $ - $ 81

See Notes to Financial Statements

-5-
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NEW HAMPSHIRE ALCOHOL AND DRUG

ABUSE COUNSELORS ASSOCIATION

SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR

THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

See Independent Auditors' Report

Program Management Total Total

Services and General Fundraising 2019 2018

Salaries and wages $ 260,092 $  16,602 $ $ 276,694 $ 222,007

Employee benefits 21,434 1,368 - 22,802 32,573

Payroll taxes 20,697 1,321 • 22,018 17,437

Scholarships/sponsorships 24,31 1 - - 2431 1 8,765

Legal and accounting fees 9,314 594 - 9,908 9,449

Professional services 108,987 - - 108,987 86,161

Trainer fees 72,435 - - 72,435 47,431

Conferences and meetings 20,411 - -
20,411 14,915

Insurance 4,071 260 - 4,331 4,334

Travel expenses 38,944 -
- 38,944 26,592

Office supplies and expenses 16,567 1,057 - 17,624 7,499

Postage 631 - - 631 43

Telephone 1,656 106 - 1,762 1,680

Education 320 - - 320 520

Marketing & communication 5,183 - 5,183 10,366 4,768

Bank and credit card fees 20 -
- 20 -

Board expenses 2,389 ■  153 - 2,542 2,684

Occupancy expenses 34,968 2,232 - 37,200 37,200

Depreciation 7,540 481 - 8,021 11,105

Miscellaneous expenses 2,598 166 - 2.764 1.962

$ 652,568 $  24,340 $  5,183 . $ .682,091 $ 537,125

See Notes to Financial Statements

-6-
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NEW HAMPSHIRE ALCOHOL AND DRUG ABUSE COUNSELORS ASSOCIATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2019 and 2018

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

General

New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse Counselors Association's (the Association) mission is to
provide quality education, workforce development, advocacy, ethical standards and leadership for
addiction professionals. The Association empowers efforts in prevention, treatment and recovery. The
Association is supported primarily through private funding and public support.

The summary of significant accounting policies of the Association is presented to assist in understanding
the Association's financial statements. The financial statements and notes are representations of NH
Alcohol and Drug Abuse Counselors Association's management who is responsible for their integrity
and objectivity. These accounting policies conform to generally accepted accounting principles and have
been consistently applied in the preparation of the financial statements.

Basis of Presentation

The Organization maintains its accounting records on the accrual basis of accounting whereby revenues
are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when the obligation is incurred. The Organization
reports information regarding its financial position and activities according to two classes of net assets:
net assets without donor restrictions and net assets with donor restrictions.

■Net Assets without Donor Restrictions - These net assets generally result from revenues
generated by receiving contributions that have no donor restrictions, providing services, and
receiving interest from operating investments, less expenses incurred in providing program-
related services, raising contributions, and performing administrative functions.

Net Assets with Donor Restrictions - These net assets result from gifts of cash and other assets
that are received with donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated assts, either temporarily
or permanently, until the donor restriction expires, that is until the stipulated time restriction ends
or the purpose of the restriction is accomplished, the net assets are restricted.

Cash eouivalents
For purposes of reporting cash flows, the Association considers all highly liquid debt instruments
purchased with a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents, excluding amounts the use of
which is limited by Board designation or restriction. At December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Association
had no cash equivalents.

Support and revenue
The Association receives support primarily through a single grant from the State of New Hampshire.
The Association would likely be unable to continue the scope of operations conducted in 2019 and 2018
in the absence of this or similar funding.

Donated Materials and Services
The Association records the value of donated goods and services when there is an objective basis
available to measure their value. For the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, in-kind
contributions were $8,555 and $11,150, respectively. The Association also received SO and $81 in non-
cash contributions for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

-7-
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NEW HAMPSHIRE ALCOHOL AND DRUG ABUSE COUNSELORS ASSOCIATION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2019 and 2018

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Eauioment

Equipment is recorded at cost of purchase or, if contributed, at fair market value at the date of donation.
If donors stipulate how long the assets must be used, the contributions are recorded as net assets with
donor restriction support. In the absence of such stipulation, contributions of equipment are recorded as
net assets without donor restriction support. The Association depreciates equipment over a 5-7 year
useful life using the straight-line method. Depreciation expense was $8,021 and $11,105 for the years
ended December 31, 2019 and 2018. Equipment purchases with a cost under $500 are not capitalized.

Income taxes

The Association has been notified by the Internal Revenue Service that it is exempt from federal income
taxes under Section 50i(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. The Association is further classified as an
organization that is not a private foundation under Section 509(a)(3) of the Code. The most significant
tax positions of the Organization are its assertion that it is exempt from income taxes and its
determination of whether any amounts are subject to unrelated business tax (UBIT). The Organization
follows the guidance of Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 740, Accounting for Income Taxes,
related to uncertain income taxes, which prescribes a threshold of more likely than not for recognition
and recognition of tax positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. All significant tax
positions have been considered by management. It has been determined that it is more likely than not
that all tax positions would be sustained upon examination by taxing authorities. Accordingly, no
provision for income taxes has been recorded.

Functional allocation of items

The costs of providing various progrjam, management and rental services have been summarized in the
statement of activities. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among the programs.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Comparative Financial Information:

The financial statements include certain prior-year summarized comparative information in total but not
by net asset class. Such information does not include sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. Accordingly, such information should be
read in conjunction with the Association's financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2018,
from which the summarized information was derived.

Financial Instruments:

The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, prepaid expense and accrued
expenses are stated at carrying cost at December 31, 2019 and 2018, which approximates fair value due
to the relatively short maturity of these instruments.
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NEW HAMPSHIRE ALCOHOL AND DRUG ABUSE COUNSELORS ASSOCIATION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31,2019 and 2018

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Cost Allocation

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been summarized on a functional
basis in the statements of activities and functional expenses. Accordingly, certain costs have been
allocated among the programs and supporting services benefited based on estimates that are based on
their relationship to those activities, consistently applied. Those expenses include payroll and payroll
related expenses and occupancy costs. Occupancy costs are allocated based on square footage. Payroll
and payroll related expenses are based on estimates of time and effort. Other cost allocations are based
on the relationship between the expenditure and the activities benefited.

New Accounting Pronouncement

During the year ended December 31, 2018, the Association adopted the requirements of the Financial
Accounting Standards Board's Accounting Standards Update No. 2016- 14—Not-for-Profit Entities
(Topic 958): Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities (ASU 2016- 14). This
Update addresses the complexity and understandability of net asset classification, deficiencies in
information about liquidity and availability of resources, and the lack of consistency in the type of
information provided about expenses and investment return between not-for-profit entities. A key
change required by ASU 2016-14 is the net asset classes used in these financial statements. Amounts
previously reported as unrestricted net assets are now reported as net assets without donor restrictions
and amounts previously reported as temporarily restricted net assets and permanently restricted net
assets are now reported as net assets with donor restrictions.

NOTE 2 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Association receives a substantial amount of its support from government agencies. A significant
reduction in the level of this support, if this were to occur, may have an effect on the Association's
programs and activities. Grants often require the fulfillment of certain conditions as set forth in the
instrument of the grant. Failure to fulfill the conditions could result in the return of funds to grantors.
Although the return of funds is a possibility, the board of directors deems the contingency unlikely,
since by accepting the grants-and their terms, it,has made a commitment to fulfill the provisions of the
grant.

Approximately 67% and 61% of total support was derived from a single grant from the State of New
Hampshire for years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

NOTE 3 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management has evaluated subsequent events through May 12, 2020, the date on which the financial
statements were available to be issued to determine if any are of such significance to require
disclosure. It has been determined that no subsequent events matching this criterion occurred during this
period.

-9-
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NEW HAMPSHIRE ALCOHOL AND DRUG ABUSE COUNSELORS ASSOCIATION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2019 and 2018

NOTE 4 CONCENTRATION OF RISK

The Association maintains cash balances in several accounts at a local bank. These accounts are insured

by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation up to $250,000. At various times throughout the year, the
Association may have cash balances at the financial institution that exceeds the insured amount.
Management does not believe this concentration of cash results in a high level of risk for the
Association. At December 31, 2019 and 2018 the Association had no uninsured cash balances.

NOTE 5 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair values of assets measured on a recurring basis at December 31 were as follows:

Other

Unobservable

Inputs

2019 Fair Value Level (2)

Accounts receivable S 980 $ 980

2018

Accounts receivable $ 7.364 $ 7.364

The fair value of the accounts receivable are estimated at the present value of expected future cash
flows.

NOTE 6 LEASE COMMITMENT

On December 19, 2013 the Association signed a lease agreement for office space in Concord, NH. The
term of the agreement is a six-year lease beginning March 1, 2014 and commencing on February 29,
2020. An addendum to the lease was signed with a term of two years beginning March 1, 2020 and
commencing on February 28, 2022. Total rent related to this lease was $37,200 and $37,200 during the
years ended December 31, 2019 and 20)8, respectively.

Future minimum rental requirements for the years ended December 31 are:

2020 $39,200

2021 39,600

2022 6.600

NOTE 7 COMPENSATED ABSENCES

Employees of the Organization are entitled to paid vacation depending on job classification, length of
services and other factors. The statement of financial position reflects accrued vacation earned, but
unpaid as of December 31, 20! 9 and 2018 in the amount of $ 1,431 and $3,357, respectively.

- 10-
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NEW HAMPSHIRE ALCOHOL AND DRUG ABUSE COUNSELORS ASSOCIATION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2019 and 2018

NOTE 8 LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Association has a policy to structure its financial assets to be available as its general expenditures,
liabilities and other obligations come due. The Association's primar>' sources of support are grants and
training fees. Most of that support is held for the purpose of supporting the Association's budget. The
Association had the foUowmg financial assets that could be readily made available within one year
to fund expenses without limitations:

2019 2018

Cash and cash equivalents $209,652 $191,679
Accounts receivable 980 7,364

Less amounts subject to
donor imposed restriction (22.0491 (35.0711

$ 163 972

NOTE 9 BOARD DESIGNATED NET ASSETS

The Association has net assets designated for various future projects and events. These funds are
comprised of the following as of December 31:

2019 2018

Cash reserve account $ 15.301 S 15.0781

NOTE 10 NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Net assets with donor restrictions are restricted for the following purposed or periods at December 31

Subject to expenditure for specific purpose: 2019 2018

BRSS TACs Contract $3,758 $3,758

Bank of NH Grant 4,185 4,720

JSI 8790 contract 3,863 3,863

Hypertherm Hope Grant 6,500 -0-

NHCF 500 -0-

Meredith Savings Bank 3.177 -0-

Dobles Foundation 9,279 15,000

Harvard Pilgrim -0- 5.000

Macoma Bank -0- 1,000

Lamprey Health Care -0- 1,499

Train it forward 346 230

Total net assets with donor restrictions ,$31,608 .$35,070



NHADACA Board List January 2020

Member Board Position Business Address Email address

Business

Phone

Linda Brewer President

State ofNH EAR

129 Pleasant Street,

Concord, NH 03301

603-271-8947

603-393-6292

Diana Gibbs
At Large

Representative

North Country Health

Consortium

262 Cottage St. Ste 230

Littleton, NH 03561

603-259-4871

603-259-3700

x222

Christopher

Foster

Seacoast

Representative

Corporate Office

Amatus Health

10019 Reisterstown Rd #301,

Owings Mills, MD 21117

410-469-8889

Christine

McKenna
Secretary

GNCA/Keystone Hall

133 Epping Road, Unit B

Exeter, NH 03833

603-658-0188

Alexandra

Hamel

Immediate Past

President

Keystone.Hall

615 Amherst St,

Nashua, NH 03063

603-816-3105

Doreen Boutin
Southern

Representative

Easter Seals/Farnum Center

140 Queen City Ave.,

Manchester, NH 03103

603-263-3610

Angela Jones
North Country

Representative

PC Box 445

Franconia, NH 03580
603-616-2019

William Keating
At Large

Representative

Seacoast Mental Health Center

1145 Sagamore Avenue

Portsmouth, NH 03801

603- 828-7783

Meredith

Senter

Central

Representative

Catholic Medical Center

8100 McGregor St.

Manchester, NH 03102

603-663-8072

Elena VanZandt

Connecticut

Valley

Representative

HALO Educational Systems

44 Roberts Rd

Canaan, NH 03741

603-523-8804

vacant
At Large

Representative

Lindsey

Ducharme
Treasurer

Horizons Counseling Center

25 Country Club Road, Ste 705

Gilford, NH 03249

603-865-7653

Diane Fontneau President Elect

Seacoast Mental Health Center

1145 Sagamore Avenue

Portsmouth, NH 03801

603-957-5825

Kimbly Wade
Lakes Region

Representative

Partnership for Public Health

67 Water Street, Suite 105

Laconia, NH 03246

603-707-5867

Amy Casey
Student

Representative

Plymouth State University

Student

Plymouth, NH 03264

none
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Foad Afshar

Ed.M.. Psy.D. LCMHC

NH Licensed Independent Mental Health #473

NH Certified School Psychologist, School Counselor and School Principal

Authorized to work in the US for any employer

Work Experience

Part time Faculty
New England College Masters in Mental Health Program - Henniker. NH
July 2019 to Present

Teach Masters Level students seeking licensure as a Mental Health Counselor in the area of Clinical
intervention and Interviewing Skills. Online with weekly synchronous class via Zoom. Provide
appropriate and timely feedback. Conduct mock clinical interviews and demonstrations. Use
Blackboard and Navigate as the EMS platform.

Mental Health Practice Consultant/Executive Coach
Afshar Consulting - Manchester, NH

April 2017 to Present

Provide executive and personal coaching, practice management consultation and training to
professionals and individuals seeking to enhance their success, achieve their personal and professional
goals and improve soft skills.

Adjunct Professor
• New England College institute of Art & Design
September 2007 to Present

Design and teach graduate courses in psychology including Educational Psychology. Creativity and the
Brain, User interface Design and and Design Thinking. Use Canvas, Navigate, Blackboard and SCAN
as EMS platforms. Provide timely feedback to students and consult with department chairs and other
faculty on curricular and instructional issues.

Founder and President
CLEER Institute - Concord. NH

May 2003 to May 2015

Paneled Provider of a full range of clinical services including assessment, psychotherapy,
emergency management and adjunctive related consultation to adolescents and young adults.

Utilized, and adapted when necessary, psychometric and educational tests including, but not
limited to: WISC, WAIS, WJ. TAT, CAT, ABAS-lll, BASC, Vineland, Roberts, drawings, and other projective
measures.

Offer assessment, consultation and training for Individuals, schools, medical professionals and the
legal system in the area of mental health, communication, mindfulness and educational disabilities.
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Assist parents and schools with identification, program design and management of special
education process and programming.

Remain updated on federal and state regulations, diagnostic and treatment procedures, latest
science of mental health, education, human development and health policy.

Maintain accurate financial and clinical records.

Manage fiscal budget of $350,000 to maintain a viable practice via electronic billing, negotiating
contracts with insurers {Medicatd, Medicare, BC/B5, and other commercial health insurance companies,
and other practitioners in my employ.

Clinical Faculty
UNH, Graduate School of Education - Durham. NH
September 2004 to May 2005

Taught courses in counseling psychology, supervised student interns and coordinated internships.

Postdoctoral Fellow Clinical Psychology
Crotched Mountain Rehabilitation Center - Greenfield. NH
September 2002 to October 2003

Active member of the clinical team at the departmental level and the Inter-disciplinary Team at
the Insiitutional level.

Provided;

0 Direct clinical services including complex psychological and psycho-educational evaluations,
individual and group therapy, develop functional behavioral assessments and intervention plans for the
students, residents and patients.

o Training and consultation to school, residential and nursing staff in the area of best practices
in behavioral and emotional management of our population, crisis de-escalation, enhanced
communication with non-verbal residents and students.

Acquired and performed Specialized Training in Adaptation of Test Protocols to Evaluate Severely
Disabled Youth including, but not limited to: WISC, WAIS, WJ, TAT, CAT, ABAS-III, BASC, Vineland,
Roberts, drawings, and other projective measures,

Continuous education on latest clinical and research issues relevant to various areas of expertise
and specialization.

Remain updated on federal and state regulations regarding patient/student care and education,
HIPAA, FERPA, Medicaid Regulations, JCAH, NH DOE, IDEA. Section 504.

Director of Guidance & Student Services
Pinkerton Academy • Derry, NH

July 1999 to June 2002

• Active member of the Leadership Team and representative of the same on Staff Development
Committee, Technology Committee and Honors Committee.

• Provided Experienced Leadership in the following areas:
e Overall management of the Guidance, College Advising, ESL, Exchange Students, Testing Services
and Section 504 Coordination for this private/public high school with over 3000 students.
» Developed and administered Fiscal a budget of approximately $1.5 million.
« Supervision of eleven professional counselors and several clerical staff. Manage and oversee all
phases and aspects of college admission. Successfully reorganized the department to comply with best
practices of the American School Counselors' Association National Standards and with those of the New
England Association for Accreditation of Schools and Colleges.
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» Consultation and research for academic departments in determining instructional efficacy and
classroom policy.

« Successful implementation of The Southern New Hampshire Spring College Fair, the largest of its
kind in the New Hampshire with over 200 colleges and 4000 individuals participating.
' Coordination of testing and assessment with PSAT, SAT and the New Hampshire Assessment.
Modernized and significantly improved technology applications in all phases of guidance and
counseling.
• Personnel recruitment, selection, evaluation & development of all professional, paraprofessional.
clerical and internship staff within my department.

• Restructured Section 504 procedures and practices to comply with the Federal Regulation in
collaboration with DOE and US Department of Education, Office of Civil Rights.
• Researched & Implemented programs to improve Post Secondary Planning and reduce School Drop
out.

• Compliance and monitoring of Title iv and IX policies

Adjunct Prof, of Psychology & Education
Notre Dame College (closed) - Manchester. MH

1986 to 2002

Graduate School of Education & Counseling, Manchester, NH. Taught over 30 varied courses Including;
Advanced Counseling Theory, Diagnosis & Assessment. Chemical Dependency. Personality Theory.
Psychopathology, Research Methods & Statistics. Emotional Disturbances & Adolescent and Life-
Span Development, Social Psychology, Human sexuality. Introduction to Psychology an Cognitive
Psychology.

• Developed curriculum for specialized course for single parents on Public Assistance to gain their
childcare certification and gainful employment in that field via a federal grant through the Continuing
Education Department.

• Served on Student Success, Retention, and Curriculum Committees

• Served on Master's Thesis Review and Support Committee

Education

Masters Degree In Counseling & Consulting Psychology
Harvard University Cambridge
1986

Bachelor's of Arts in Psychology
University of Massachusetts - Boston, ma

1983

Doctorate in Psychology in Psychology
California Coast University - Santa Ana. CA
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Skills _

• Managemeni:. Interpersonal Communication, Presentation, Computers. Applied Psychology, UX
Design, Curricular design, delivery and evaluation, finance and budgets (10+ years)

Certifications and Licenses

NH Licensed Mental Health Counselor. Active #473 Expires 4/21/2021
December 2002 to April 2021

NH Certified School Counselor, School Psychologist and School Principal
#40867

December 2018 to June 2021

Additional Information

Speak, read and write in Farsi
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LICENSURE

EDUCATION

EXPERIENCE

DIANNE P. CASTRUCCI

Master Licensed Alcohol and Drug Counselor

Master of Education Degree. May 1993
Concentration: Counselor Education: Human Services

Bachelor of Science Degree. Mav 1989

Major: Elementary Education Minors: Psychology and Human Services
Plymouth State College, Plymouth, N.H.

Executive Director. NH Alcohol & Drug Abuse Counselors Association, Concord,

N.H.— June 2012 — Present

Promoted to Executive Director in June 2012, the Chief Executive Officer of
NHADACA reports to the Board of Directors, provides leadership and direction in
the development and delivery of all activities and is responsible for the
organization's consistent achievement of its mission and financial objectives.
•  ensures the organizational operations and activities are provided in the highest

quality manner within the fiscal and human resource limitations of the
organization.

•  administers and manages all grants, contracts, and agreements and infonns the
Board of Directors of these and other commitments that involve the utilization

of agency operational and financial resources and/or staff and volunteer time.
•  ensures the fiscal integrity and stability of the organization.

•  staffs the day-to-day operations of the organization providing leadership to staff
and volunteers to effectively carry out their assigned responsibilities.

•  serves as a spokesperson for the organization in public settings, consistent with
the mission, policies, and activities of the organization.

Training Institute Director. NH Alcohol & Drug Abuse Counselors Association/ NH

Training Institute on Addictive Disorders, Gilford, N.H. — Feb. 2004 - June 2012
Coordinates logistics of workforce development opportunities for substance abuse
prevention, intervention and treatment professionals throughout New Hampshire.
• consults with treatment and prevention professionals to identify specific training

topic needs and local or regional trainers with expertise on that topic.
• collaborates with co-sponsors for various events.
• contacts trainers, contracts their services and coordinates travel arrangements
• markets and advertises events by creating electronic/email flyers and printed

brochures and submits events for inclusion in training publications.
• maintains participant database including attendance, tuition and CE information.
• coordinates functions associated with presenting major conference and training

workshops of various sizes, and at various locations, statewide.

Board Administrator. NH Board of Licensing for Alcohol & Other Drug Use

Professionals, Concord, N.H. — September 2011 -March 2012
Write Board correspondence, create agenda for and keep minutes at Board meetings,
organize professional packets for review, maintain databases, arrange and order
testing, database auditing, other administrative functions as assigned by the
chairperson of the board.
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Master Licensed Substance Use Outpatient Counselor. Horizons Counseling Center,
Gilford, N.H.— January 2006 - May 2013
Provide substance abuse services related to evaluation and group treatment
to individuals in an outpatient setting and facilitate various psycho-educational
groups including Project ADAPT to be held at, and in coordination, with the
Belknap County Department of Corrections.

Exit Counselor. Community Alcohol Information Program, Inc., Boscawen, Nashua
and Laconia, N.H. — July 2003 - November 2005
Conduct exit interviews for clients at the completion of the CAIP, Impaired Driver
Intervention Program for DWI first offenders. Attended PRI training October 2003.
• diagnosed, and referred as appropriate, DWI first offenders for alcohol

dependence and/or alcohol abuse upon file review and structured exit interview.

Licensed Substance Use Outpatient Counselor. James Foster & Associates,
Manchester, N.H. — October 2003 - July 2004
Provide substance abuse ser\'ices related to evaluation and brief treatment
of individuals in an outpatient setting.

Corrections Counselor/Case Manager. NH Department of Corrections, Lakes
Region Facility, Laconia, N.H. — December 1998 - February 2004
Providing clinical services of inmates participating in a modified therapeutic
community treatment program (Summit House/Level 3 Substance Abuse Services).
• chaired and participated on, professional development committees to detennine

staff training needs and involvement, VOITIS grant fund use, as well as planning
and coordination of multiple substance abuse training events for DOC staff.

•  supervised inmates in lectures, clinical groups, community meetings, clinical
staffing, individual counseling sessions and other clinical group activities.

• prepared/maintained clinical charts including evaluations, discharge summaries,
treatment transfer infonnation for parole and aftercare recommendations.

•  impacted the direction/implementation and planning of treatment services
available to inmates incarcerated at the Lakes Region Facility.

Antioch New Enuland Adjunct Facultv. Summit House Program, Lakes Region
Facility, Laconia, N.H. — May 2000 - May 2002
Field supen'ise and train graduate interns from the Antioch Graduate School of New
England in methods and practice of substance abuse counseling.
•  interview, accept or deny, teach/train and super\'ise master's level interns.
• communicate with professional seminar leaders.

Substance Use Counselor. N.H. Bureau of Substance Abuse Services,
Multiple Offender Program, Laconia, N.H. — December 1993 - December 1998
Working as a clinical team member providing assessment, education and
intervention services to individuals convicted of multiple DWls.
• conducted intake/orientation, education, individual and group counseling,

evaluation and assessment services relevant to client's substance use, medical,
psychological, legal and social history.

•  represented the program at official hearings of the Dept. of Motor Vehicles.
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Independent Contractor/Counselor. NH Department of Corrections, First Step
Program, Lakes Region Facility, Laconia, N.H. — July 1997 - September 1997
Facilitated the substance abuse/psycho-educational group component to NH State
Prison inmates participating in the First Step Program. The course involved
providing 25-28 male inmates intervention ser\'ices, 3 hours per week for 8 weeks.
• created curriculum including lesson outlines and client handouts;
•  facilitated psycho-educational course on substance abuse related issues with

difficult offender population.

Shelter Manager. Task Force Against Domestic and Sexual Violence,
Plymouth, N.H. — February 1992 - December 1993
Completed 40-hour crisis training for Task Force volunteer crisis-line and was hired
as the Shelter Manager four months later.
• communicated with DCYS/DCYF on crisis-related issues.

• supported women in crisis at Plymouth Area Court sessions.

• coordinated/managed building functions, including monitoring clients, intakes,
general maintenance, food pantry and emergency supplies.

• presented training workshops on shelter regulations and procedures.

Editorial Assistant. Office of News Services, Plymouth State College,
Plymouth, N.H.— August 1989 - November 1993
Associated with this office for four years starting as Administrative Secretary then
promoted to Editorial Assistant.

• produced internal and external desktop publications.
• created weekly and monthly events calendars to market college events.
• wrote and distributed news releases concerning student success.
• hired and supervised student office assistants.
• created purchasing documents for supplies and ser\'ices.
• utilized and maintained extensive computer databases.
•  submitted listings of college events to newspapers for publication.

OTHER

ACTIVITIES NH Governor's Commission Treatment Task Force 2018-Present

Legislative Commission on Primary Care Workforce Issues 2018-Present
NH LADC Board Peer Review Committee April 2013- March 2019
Associate Member of the Eleaming Guild October 2012-2014
Member of National Association of Forensics Counselors 2002-2012
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CONTRACTOR NAME

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

Dianne Castrucci Executive Director $84,968 30% $25,490

Foad Afshar Training Director $64,000 .44% $28,160
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DimiONFOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271-9544 1-800-852:3345 CxL 9544

Fax; 603-271-4332 TOD Access: 1-800^735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

August 5. 2020

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health, on
behalf of the Governor's Commission on Alcohol and Other Drugs, to enter into a contract with
New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse Counselors Association d/tVa New Hampshire Training
Institute on Addictive Disorders (VC#TBD), Concord, New Hampshire in the amount of S461,900
for the provision of a high-quality competency and skills-based training program with the option
to renew for up to two (2) additional years, effective upon Governor and Council approval through
June 30, 2022. 36.74% Federal Funds, 15.58% General Funds, and 47.68% Other Funds
(Governors Commission Funds).

05-9&-92-920510-33820000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS. HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH. BUREAU OF DRUG AND
ALCOHOL, GOVERNOR COMMISSION FUNDS (100% Other Funds)

State

Fiscal Year

Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number Total Amount

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92058501 $110,119

2022 ■ 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92058501 $110,119

Subtotal $220,238

05-95-92-920510-33840000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS. HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH. BUREAU OF DRUG AND
ALCOHOL, CLINICAL SERVICES (66% Federal Funds 34% General Funds)

State

Fiscal Year

Class 1

Account
Class Title Job Number Total Amount

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057501 $105,831

2022 102-500731 ' Contracts for Prog Svc 92057501 $105,831

Subtotal $211,662

Tht Otporlnxtnl 0/ Heollh and Human Servicts' Mission it to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for cUieent to achieve health and independence.
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OB-95-92-920510-33960000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND
ALCOHOL. PARTNERSHIP FOR SUCCESS GRANT (100% Federal Funds)

State Fiscal
Year

Class / Account Class Title Job Number
Total

Amount

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92052407 $15,000

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92052407 $0

Subtotal $f5,000

06-96-92-920510-70400000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND
ALCOHOL, NH STATE OPIOID RESPONSE GRANT (100% Federal Funds)

State Fiscal
Year

Class/Account Class Title Job Number
Total
Amount

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057040 $15,000

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 920570040 $0

Subtotal $15,000

Total $461,900

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to provide a high-quality competency and skills-based training
program that addresses the needs of the State's prevention, eariy-inten/ention. treatment, and
recovery supports workforce. The Contractor will deliver high quality training to improve the ability
of Alcohol and Other Drug supports and service providers to provide quality, outcome-supported
services to individuals and families.

New Hampshire lacks the workforce capacity to provide needed Alcohol and Other Drug
prevention, early-intervention, treatment, and recovery support services to meet the growing need
for services. High turnover rates, worker shortages, an aging workforce. Inadequate
compensation, and stigma have created a workforce crisis in the field.

The continued Improvement and transformation of the Alcohol and Other Drug Continuum of Care
system and integration with primary and behavioral healthcare depend entirely on a workforce
that Is adequate in size, as well as trained and supported, to meet the needs of individuals who
seek substance use disorder treatment services. Additionally, the necessary knowledge base for
providing Alcohol and Other Drug services has increased dramatically over the past several years.

In 2019, the NH Governor's Commission on Alcohol and Other Drugs, in partnership with senrice
providers and other key stakeholders. Identified data-driven priorities to comprehensively address
New Hampshire's addiction crisis. The three (3)-year plan provides a framework to move New
Hampshire forward in a direction that creates an outcomes-based approach that continues to
build on well-coordinated efforts across the Continuum of Care System.
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The Department will monitor contracted services through regularly scheduled meetings, the
submission and review of monthly program reports and by using the following performance
measures:

•  The Contractor will collect a completed evaluation sheet from no less than 85% of
participants who attend a training event.

•  The Department will monitor performance of the contract by trainee satisfaction survey
results that reflect an 85% or higher rating of trainee satisfaction through evaluation
results submitted.

The Department selected the Contractor through a competitive bid process using a Request for
Proposals (RFP) that was posted on the Department's website from 5/26/2020 through 6/24/2020.
The Department received two (2) responses that were reviewed and scored by a team of qualified
individuals. The Scoring Sheet is attached.

fis referenced in Exhibit A. Revisions to Standard Contract Provisions. Section 1, Revisions to
Form P-37. General Provisions. Subsection 1.1. of the attached contract, the parties have the
option to extend the agreement for up to two (2) additional years, conlingent upon satisfactory
delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and Governor and Council
approval.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request. New Hampshire's Alcohol
and Other Drug workforce may be unaware of the most current and efficacious information and
research on support services and treatment for substance use disorders. The result could lead
to the provision of substandard treatment for people with alcohol and other drug issues and may
result in a workforce that Is unable to fulfil continuing education credits needed to meet, complete
and sustain licensure and certification requirements.

Area served: Statewide

Source of Funds: CFDWf93.959/FAIN#TI083041. CFDA #93.7B8/FAIN TI081685. and
CFDA 93.243/FAIN SP020796

In the event that the Federal or Other Funds become no longer available. General Funds
will not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Lorl A. Shibinette
Commissioner



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Office of Business Operations

Contracts & Procurement Unit

Scoring Sheet

Training for Alcohol and Other Drug
(AOD) Workforce

RFP Name

Bidder Name

1.
Altarum

2.
NHADACA

3.

5.

6.

7.

RFP.2021 -BDAS-05-TRAIN

RFP Number Reviewer Names

Heidi Young. Prgrm. Planning and
Review Spec.

Pass/Fail

Maximum

Points

Actual

Points

390 2S8

390 328

390 0

390 0

390 0

390. 0

390 0

2.

3.

Olivia Afshar. Program AssL I

Linda Padcer, Clinical Services

Prgrm. Spec.IV

4.
Shannon Quinn, Program Spec.lV

Laurie Heath. Busn. Admin

6.

7.

8.

9.



FORM NUMBER M?(vcrtlen 12^1/2019)

Subject: Training for Alcohol and Olhcr prugCAOD) Workforce (RFP-202I-BDAS-05-TRAIN-OI)

Noiice: This agreement and ail qF its aiiachmcnts shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any inrormation that is private, conndcittial or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGMREMCNT

The State of New Hampshire and the Coniracior hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

I.I State Agency Name

New Hampshire Oepanmem of Health artd Homan Services

1.2 Stale Agency AtJdrcss

129 Pleasant Street'

Concord. NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name

New Hnmpchire Alcohol and Drug Abuse Counselors
Association d/b/a New Hampshire Training Institute
on Addictive Disorders

1.4 Contraciur Address

130 Pembroke Road, Suite 100
Concord, NH 03301

1.5 Contractor Phone
Number

(603)225-7060

1.6 Account Number

05-095-092-920510-3382
05-095-092-920510-3384

05-095-092-920510-3395

05-095-092-920510-7040

1.7 Completion Date )

June 30,2022

1.8 Price Limitation

$461,900

1.9 Comraciing OlTiccr for State Agency

Nathan H. White, Director

1.10 Stale Agency Telephone Number

(603) 271-9631

i.l) Contractor Signature 1.12 Name and Title ofContracioc Signatory

1.13 Slate Agency Signature i .

oaicr/ys^^o
1.14 Name and Title of Stale Agency Signatory

Bv: DircL'toi', On"

1.16 Approval by the Attorney General (Form. SiibsiaiKC and FxccoiiimO (ifapplicnMc)

08/10/20

1.17 Approval by the Govcrrv-r and T-.tccutivc C';-uo;"il (i/ut>itliaihk)

CAC Item number. "G&C Meeting Date:
.J

rngc 1 of5
Contractor Initials

Date
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The Sioie of New

Hampshire, DC(iiij{ ilirough ihe agency idcnlined in block I.I
("Slate"), engages conimcior identified in block 1.3
("Contraciof") to perform, and the Contractor shall perform, the
work or ttale of goods, or both, idcnlined and more particularly
described in the attached EXHIBIT B which is incorporated
herein by reference ("Services").

J. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of ihis Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of (he Stale of New Hampshire, if applicable,
this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hcrcunder, shall
become effective on the date the Governor and Executive

Council approve this Agreement as indicated in block 1.17,
unless no such approval is required, in which case the Agreement
shall become efreciive on the date the Agreement is signed by
the Stale Agency as shown in block 1.13 ("EfTective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
EfTective Dale, all Services performed by the Contractor prior to
Ihe Effective Dale shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not become,

cfTeciivc. the State shall have no_liabil>tv to the Contractor.

including without limitation, any obligation -to pay the
Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Noiwitltstanding any provision of this Agreement lu the
contrary, all obiigotion.s of the State hcrcunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hercundcr. are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation of
funds affected by any state or federal legislative or executive
action that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies the
appropriation or availability of funding for (his Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole or in
part. In no event shall the State be liable for any payments
hcreundcr in excess of such available appropriated funds. In the
event of a reduction or termination of appropriated funds, (he
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or
terminate the Services under this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or termination.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other
account or source to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the

event funds in (hat Account arc reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICEypRICE LIMITATION/

PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms ofpayment
are identified and nxtre particularly described in EXHIBIT C
which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for ell
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete

compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State shall
have no liability to the Contractor other than (he contract price.
5.3 The State reserves the right to offset Irom any amounts'
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement those
liquidated amounu required or permitted by N.H. RSA S0:7
through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no
event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually made
hercundcr. exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In coruicciion with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with ail applicable statutes, laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, state, county or municipal
authorities which impose any-obligation or duty upon the
Contractor, including, but not limited to. civil rights and equal
employment opportunity laws. In addition, if this Agreement is
funded in any part by monies of the United Slates, the Convactor

.shall.compiy.wiih all.fedcral.execulive.orders,.rules, regulations,
and statutes, and wiib any rules, regulations ond.guidelines as-the
State or the United Siotcs issue to implement these regulations.
The Contractor shall al.co comply with all applicable imcllectual
property laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not
discriminate against employees or applicants for employment
because of race, color, religion, crccd. age. sex. handicap, sexual
orientation, or national origin and will loke alTirmoiive action to
prevent such discrimination.
6.3. The Contractor agrees to permit the .State or United States
access to any of the Contractor's books, records and accounts for
(he purpose of ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations
and orders, and (he covenants, terms and conditions of this
Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Coniraciof shall at its own expense provide all personnel
necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor warrants that
all personnel engogcd in the Services shall be qualified to
perform the Services, and shall be properly licensed and
otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable lows.
7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
ihis Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months oOer the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire, and
shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, nrm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined efTori to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State employee
or official, who is maierially involved in the procurement,
administration or performance of this Agreement. This
provision shall survive terminuiion of this Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting Offtccr specified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event of any
dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement, the
Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the State.
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of ihc following acij or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder ("Event
of Defauli");
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenont, term or condition of
this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State moy
take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a wrinen notice specifying the Event of
Oefauti and requiring it to be remedied Nviihin, in (he absence of
a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30) days from the
date of the notice; and ifthe Event of Default is rtot timely cured,
terminate this Agreement, elTectivc two (2) days afier giving the
Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State

submit to the Stale a Transition Plan for services under the
AgreenKiU.

10. DATA/ACCESS/CONFlDENTlAtrrV/

preservation.

10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of. this
Agreement, including, but not limited to. oil studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
representations, computer programs, computer printouts, notes,
letters, memoranda, papers, and documents, all whether
finished or unfinished.

10.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the Stale or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shad be the property of the State, and
shall be relumed to the State upon demand or upon termination
of this Agreement for any reason.
10.3 Confidentiality of data shall be goverrwd by N.H. RS A
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data require.^
prior wrinen approval of thc.Siatc.

determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;
6.2.3 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Ocfauil and set off against any other obligations the State may
owe in the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of
any Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default, treat the Agreement a.s breached, lemtinaie the
Agreement and pursue any of its remedies ai law or in equity, or
both.

8.3. No failure by the Stale to enforce any provisions hereof after
any Event of Default shal I be deemed a waiver of its rights with
regard to thai Event of Default, or any subsequent Event of
Default. No express failure to enforce any Event ofOefauU shall
be deemed a waiver of the right of the Suite to enforce each and
all of the provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of
Default on (he pan of (he Contractor.

9. termination.

9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8, (he State may, at its sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any rca.son, in whole or
in part, by thirty (30) days written notice to the Contractor.that
the State is exercising its option to terminate (he Agreement.
9.2 In the event of an early termination of this Agreement for
any reason other than the completion of the Services, the
Contractor shall, at the State's discretion, deliver to the
Contracting OfTtcer. not later than fifteen (15) days after the date
of termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including ihc date of icrminaiion. The form, subject matter,
conicni. and number of copies of the Termination Report shall
be identical to those of any Final Report described in the attached
EXHIBIT B. In addition, at the State's discrelion, the Contractor
shall, within IS days of notice of early termination, develop and

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the
performance of this AgreciTKnt the Contractor is in all respects
an independent concructor, end is neither an agent nor on
employee of the State. Neither the Coniractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compcrvsailon or
other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNM ENT/DELECATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
12.1 The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior wTiiccn notice, which
shall be provided to (he State at least fifteen (15) days prior to
(he assignment, and a written consent of the State. For purposes
of this paragraph, a Change of Control shall constitute
assignment. "Change of Control" means (a) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or scries of related transactions in
which a third party, together with its affiliates, becomes the
direct or indirect owner of fifty percent (50%) or mom of the
voting shares or similar equity interests, or combined voting
power of the Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or substantially all
of the assets of die Contractor.

12.2 None of the Services shall be subcontracted hy the
Contractor without prior written notice and consent of the Slate.
The State is entitled to copies of all subcontracts and assignment
agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions contained
in a subcontract or an assignment agreement to which it is not a
party.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Unless otherwi.<;e exempted by law.
the Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the State, its
officers and employees, from and against any and all claims,
liabilities and costs for any personal injury or property damages,
patent or copyright infringement, or other claims asserted against
the State, its officers or employees, which arise out or(or which
may be claimed to arise out oO the acts or omission of the
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Coniracior, or subconiraccors, including bui noi limited'lo (he
negligence, reckless or intentional conduct. The State shall not
be liable for any costs incuaed by the Contractor arising under
this paragraph 13. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute o waiver of the sovereign
immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby reserved to the
State. This covenant' in paragraph 13 shall survive (he
termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its. sole expense, obtain and
conitnuously maintain in force, and shell require any
subcontractor or assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the
following insurance:
14.1.1 commercial general liability insurance against all claims
of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not
less than $1,000,000 per occurrence and S2.00D,DO0 aggregate
or excess; and

14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all property
subject to subparagraph 10.2 herein, in an amount not less than
80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be
on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the State,
of New Hampshire by (he N.H. Deportment of Insurance, and
issued by insurers licensed in (he State ofNew Hampshire.
14.3 The Controctor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
ideniincd in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a cenificatefs) of
insuraiKC for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer identified
in block 1.9, or his or her successor, ccrtifrcatcfs) of insurance
for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this Agreement no
later than ten (10) days prior to the expiration date of each
insurance policy. The ccrlificatcfs) of insurance und any
renewals thereof shall be attached and are incorporated herein by
reference.

15. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, certifies
and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with or exempt
from, the requirements ofN.H. RSA chapter 281-A ("Workers'
Compensation
15.2 To (he extent the Conlractor is subject to the requirements
of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Conlractor shall maintain, and
require any subcontractor or assignee to secure and maintain,
payment of Workers* Compensation in connection with
activities which the person proposes to undertake pursuant to this
Agreement. The Contractor shall furnish the Contracting Officer
idcniifled in block 1.9, or hisor her successor, proof of Workers'
Cumpcnsation in the manner described in N.H. RSA chopicr
28!-A and any applicable renewal(s) (hereof, which shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. The State
shall not be responsible for payment of any Workers'
Compensation premiums or for any other claim or benefit for
Conlractor, or any subcontractor or employee of Contractor,
which might arise under applicable State of New Hampshire
Workers' Compensation laws in connection with the
performance of the Services under this Agreement.

16. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the time
of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United Stales
Post Office addressed to the panics at the addresses given in
blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

17. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived
or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed by the
parties hereto and only aOcr approval of such amendment,
waiver or diseharge by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire unless no such approval is required
under the circumstances pursuant to State law. rule or policy.

18. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. This Agreement shall
be governed, interpreted and construed in accordance with the
laws of (he Suit of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective successors
and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is the wording
chosen by the parties to express their mutual intent, and no rule
of construction shall be applied against or in favor of any party.
Any actions arising out of this Agfccmcnt shall be.brought.and-

.mamiained in New Hampshire Superior Court which shall have ■
exclusive jurisdiction (hereof.

19. CONFIJCTINC TERMS. In the event of a conflict

between the terms of this P>37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT
A) and/or attachments and amendment thereof, (he terms of (he
r-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

20. THIRD Parties. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and (his Agreement shall not be
construed to confer arty such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the
inicrpretatron, consiruciion or meaning of the provisions of this
Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions set forth in the attached EXHIBIT A arc incorporated
herein by reference.

23. SEVCRABILITY. In ihe event any ofthc provisionsufthis
Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be
contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining provisions of
(his Agreement will remain in full force and effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. Thi.s Agreement, which may be
executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original, constitutes the entire agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings with respect to the subject matter
hereof,
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Training for Alcohol and Other Drug (ADD) Workforce

EXHIBIT A

REVISIONS TO STANDARD CONTRACT PROVISIONS

1. Revisions to Form P-37. General Provisions

1.1. Paragraph 3, Effective Date/Completion of Services, is amended by adding
subparagraph 3.3 as follows:

3.3. The parties may extend the Agreement for up to two (2) additional years
from the Completion Date, contirigent upon satisfactory delivery of
services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and required
govemmentai approval.

1.2. Paragraph 12, Assignment/Delegation/Subcontracts, is amended by adding
subparagraph 12.3 as follows:

12.3. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual conditions as the
Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor
compliance vwth those conditions. The Contractor shall have written
agreements with all subcontractors, specifying the work to be performed
and how corrective action shall be managed if the subcontractor's
performance Is inadequate. The Contractor shall manage, the
sutiGontractor's performance on an ongoing basis and take correclive
action as necessary. The Contractor shall annually provide the State with
a list of all subcontractors provided for under this Agreement and notify
the State of any inadequate subcontractor performance.

New HempsWre Alcohol end Ofyg Abuso Sxhib<iA
Coun&tfofs Associeilon d/tVa
New Hampshire TreWng Inttitme on AddlcUve Disorders
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Training for Aicohol and Other Drug (ADD) Workforce

EXHIBIT B

Scope of Services

1. Statement of Work

1.1. The Contractor shall ensure services in this agreement are available to:

1.1.1. The Alcohol and Other Drug (AGO) Continuum of Care workforce,
statewide.

1.1.2. Professionals providing services specific to the Partnership for Success
(PFS) grant, as Identified by the Oepariment including, but not limited to:

1.1.2.1. Student Assistance Professionals.

1.1.2.2. Substance Misuse Prevention professionals.

1.1.3. Individuals providing services specific to the State Opioid Response
(SCR) grant as identified by the Department-includingrbut nol limited to:-

1.1.3.1. SOR granl-funded contractors.

1.1.3.2. Families including, but not limited to. the nuclear family,
grandparents and other relatives impacted by substance use
disorder (SUD).

1.1.3.3. Programs working with children impacted by familial substance
use.

1.2. The Contractor shall administer a .multi-component training program which
Includes, but is not limited to:

1.2.1. Developing a training calendar that offers a systematic approach to
meeting credentiaiing and continuing education requirements across the
ADD Continuum of Care system, that includes the following training
suites:

1.2.1.1. Prevention;

1.2.1.2. Intervention;

1.2.1.3. Treatment; and

1.2.1.4. Recovery.

1.2.2. Planning, coordinating and providing, training opporlunlties; both irr-
person and through eLearning platforms; which cover core, intermediate,
and advanced levels of instruction; are approved by the Department; and
include, but are not limited to:

1.2.2.1. In state fiscal year 2021:

1.2.2.1.1. A minimum of 58 live, professional development training
events with in-person and virtual attendance options,
including, but not limited to skill building practice series and

New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse ' B Coniraclor Initials
Counselor-Assodatjon d/b/e New Hampshire

Training institute on Addictive Disorders
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Training for Alcohol and Other Drug (ADD) Workforce

EXHIBIT B

targeted training for emerging Issues, with at least six (6)
being offered In the northern regions of NH.

1.2.2.1.2. A minimum of five (5) new, on-demand webinars, added to
the existing library of webinars.

1.2.2.1.3. A minimum of four (4) kinship family trainings.
I

1.2.2.1.4. A minimum of six (6) Bureau of Drug and Alcohol Services
trainings, as detailed In Subsection 1.3.

1.2.2.2. In state fiscal year 2022:

1.2.2.2.1. A minimum of 54 live, professional development training
events with in-person and virtual attendance options
including, but not limited to skill building practice series and
targeted_training.for_emergingjssues._with-atJeast.six.(6)-

■ being offered in the northern regions of NH.

1.2.2.2.2. A minimum of five (5) new, on-demand webinars, added to
the existing library of webinars.

1.2.2.2.3. A minimum of eight (8) Bureau of Drug and Alcohol
Services trainings, as detailed in Subsection 1.3.

1.2.3. Providing participants with training materials.

1.2.4. Ensuring training Is designed for different adult learning styles and levels
of knowledge.

1.2.5. Ensuring training is provided by qualified presenters, as approved by the
Department.

1.2.6. Providing integrated. eLearnIng tools, when appropriate.

1.2.7. Providing participants with approved Continuing Education Credits,
applicable to the training audience and certification needs.

1.2.8. Providing participants with continuous access to a library of a minimum
of 50 on-demand webinars.

1.3. The Contractor shall provide the training space, materials, and logistical
support for two (2) trainings on a quarterly basis, al^ no cost to participants,
utilizing trainers provided by the Department, which include:

1.3.1. The Initial Training on Addiction and Recovery, a six (6) hour, in-person
training.

1.3.2. Families and Addiction, a three (3) hour, in-person training.

1.4. The Contractor shali ensure training sessions are consistent with the required
professional standards and core competency needs of the workforce which
include, but are not limited to. relevant training for:

New Hampshire AJcohd atxJ Drug Abuse E*hibil B Contraclof tnlUals
Counselor Association d/b/a New Hampshire
Training Institute on Addictive Disorders
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Training for Alcohol and Other Drug (ADD) Workforce ■

EXHIBIT B

1.4.1. Certified Prevention Specialists (CPS).

1.4.2. Licensed Alcohol and Drug Counselors (LADC).

1.4.3. Master Licensed Alcohol and Drug Counselors (MLADC).

1 .'4.4. Certified Recovery Support Workers (CRSW).

1.5. The Contractor shall collaborate with subject matter experts, as directed^and
identified by the Department, to develop and Improve training curricula and
content to meet the needs of the target audiences for PFS and SCR grants.

1.6. The Contractor shall monitor attendance at each event to ensure individuals
attend for the full length of the training in order to obtain continuing education

■certificates which includes, but is not limited to:

1.6.1. Ensuring positive verification of attendance at each event for each
partlclpanfuslng'a'method'approved'bythe'Department.

1.6.2. Complying with the requirements of the New Hampshire Department of
Information Technology for tracking online attendance.

1.7. The Contractor shall identify and engage qualified presenters to deliver
training opportunities, as approved by the Department.

1.8. The Contractor shall market training events utilizing methods approved by the
Department which include, but are not limited to:

1.8.1. Maintaining an email list and sending email notifications to the AOD
workforce and identified training audiences.

1.8.2. Maintaining and publishing an events calendar on the Contractor's
website..

1.8.3. Publishing and distributing a newsletter to the AOD workforce and
identified training audiences on a quarterly basis.

1.9. The Contractor shall develop and utilize an evaluation plan, process and
tool(s) to evaluate each training event, as approved by the Department and
in accordance with each accrediting body, that includes, but is not limited to:

1.9.1. Collecting and analyzing participant evaluation responses for each
training session.

1.9.2. Compiling and analyzing aggregate data from evaluation responses no
less than every six (6) months.

1.9.3. Sharing evaluation data with the Department to ensure the program is
meetings its goals and for continuous quality improvement of the training
program.

1.10. The Contractor shall utilize a learning management system to monitor and
manage the training program. The system shall comply with DolT
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Training for Alcohol and Other Drug (AGO) Workforce

EXHIBIT B

requirements and include, but not be limited to:

1.10.1. An Administrative Dashboard that includes, but is not limited to, the ability
to;

1.10.1.1. Receive and track information that Includes, but is not limited to:

1.10.1.1.1. Registration and payment for trainings.

1.10.1.1.2. Date and title for each training session.

1.10.1.1.3. Number of registrations, attendees and individuals on
waitlists for individual trainings.

1.10.1.1.4. Information for each participant, including:

1.10.1.1.4.1. Name of participant;

lTl0rlT-1-.4:2: Job title;

1.10.1.1.4.3. Name of participant's agency or organization;

1.10.1.1.4.4. Mailing Address:

1.10.1.1.4.5. Email address; and

1.10.1.1.4.6. Fees paid by participant and/or agency.

1.10.1.2. Send and receive training evaluations to and from participants.

1.10.2. A Participant Portal that includes, but is not limited to:

1.10.2.1. The ability to register and pay for training.

1.10.2.2. Personal profiles that allow participants to access training
summaries and continuing education certificates based on
attendance.

1.11. The Contractor shall work closely with tbe Department to support current and
emerging initiatives for improving the State's system of care including, but not
limited to:

1.11.1. Developing training materials on particular topics for target populations,
as needs arise, at the request of the Department.

1.11.2. Adjusting activities and staffing to meet Department needs and the needs
of the workforce.

1.11.3. Updating training topics and classes as scientific evidence evolves.

1.12. The Contractor shall provide access to training for Bureau of Drug and
Alcohol Services employees, when space is available, for any scheduled
training session, at no additional cost.

1.13. The Contractor shall identify the needs of the workforce and ensure trainings
offered are not duplicative of existing trainings offered through other venues

New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse Exhibil B Ccntracior initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Training for Alcohol and Other Drug (ADD) Workforce

EXHIBIT B

by;

1.13.1. Meeting regularly with the Department to seek input on training needs in
support of ongoing initiatives and other emerging needs.

1.13.2. Collecting and analyzing participant evaluation feedback for individual
trainings and on a bi-annual basis.

1.13.3. Soliciting feedback from participants, professionals and.key stakeholders
regarding the training needs of the NH ADD workforce.

1.13.4. Participating in workforce development education and training
committees to (earn what other agencies are Intending to offer and to
Inform the agencies of (he training plans.

1.13.6. Attending licensing and certification board meetings to Identify provider
needs

1.13.6. Actively engaging in the planning of collaborative conferences.

1.14. The Contractor shall administer a process to award scholarships, in an
amount not less than $10,000 for each state fiscal year to NH AOD
Continuum of Care service providers to attend training events, as approved
by the Department, which may include, but are not limited to events
sponsored by: .

1.14.1. AdCare Educational Institute of New England.

1.14.2. The New England Addiction Technology Transfer Center (ATTC).

1.14.3. Prevention Technology Transfer Center (PTTC) Network.

1.15. The Contractor shall administer a process to award scholarships in the
amount of not less than $2,000 for stale fiscal year 2021 to individuals for
whom cost to attend SOR-funded trainings Is a barrier, ensuring final
determination of awards is approved by the Department.

.  1.16. The Contractor shall maintain a web presence for the trainings provided on
the Contractor's website, svww.nhadaca.org. which shall include, but is not
limited to:

1.16.1. A calendar of training events offered or sponsored.

1.16.2. The ability for participants to register for training.

1.16.3. Access to all eLeamIng opportunities offered through this program.

1.17. The Contractor may collect registration fees from training participants,
excluding training participants attending the Initial Training on Addiction and
Recovery and Families and Addiclion quarterly trainings for training expenses
that exceed the amount funded by the Department.

1.18. The Contractor shall ensure a minimum of 85% of revenue generated from
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Training for Alcohol and Other Drug (ADD) Workforce

EXHIBIT B

registration fees collected are reinvested to enhance the training program, as
approved by the Department.

1.19. The Contractor shall increase sustainability of the training program by
leveraging resources to increase and expand the number of training
opportunities offered.

1.20. The Contract shall conduct a project kick-off meeting with the Department
and identified project staff within 20 business days of the contract effective
dale to review:

1.20.1. Contract requirements:

1.20.2. Initial work plan; and

1.20.3. Initial timelines.

"1:21: The'ContractOfshairprovide'a'Wdrk'plan'ahd timeline'to'thVDepartmeht that'
defines the goals, objectives, activities, deliverables, and due dates to the
Department for approval, ensuring:

1.21.1. The initial work plan and timeline are provided to the Department within
10 business days of the project kick-off meeting.

1.21.2. Changes to work plans or timelines are approved by the Department prior
to implementation.

1.22. The Contractor shall provide an evaluation to the Department for approval
within 10 business days following the Kick-off meeting that specifies how
trainings will be evaluated.

2. Exhibits Incorporated

2.1. The Contractor shall use and disclose Protected Health Infonmation in

compliance with the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information (Privacy Rule) (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164) under the Health
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996, and in
accordance with the attached Exhibit I. Business Associate Agreement, which

has been executed by the parties.

2.2. The Contractor shall manage all confidential-data related to this Agreement
in accordance with the terms of Exhibit K. DHHS Information Security
Requirements.

2.3. The Contractor shall comply with all Exhibits D through K, which are attached
hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

3. Reporting Requirements

3.1. . The Contractor shall provide written monthly progress reports to the
Department regarding accomplishment of contract goals and performance
measures. The Contractor shall ensure reports include, but are not lirnlted

New Hampshire AJcohoI end Drug Abuse E*hibiJ B Coniractcv Iniiials //OLl
Counselor Association dAVa New Hampshire . .
Trainli>g Institute on Addictive Disorders 7/\
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Training for Alcohol and Other Drug (AGO) Workforce

EXHIBIT 8

to:

3.1.1. A summary of the work performed during the. previous month.

3.1.2. Encountered and foreseeable key issues and suggested mitigation
strategies for each.

3.1.3. Scheduled trainings for the. following quarter.

3.1.4. A summary of evaluation results from services provided during the
previous month.

3.1.5. Updates to the work plan.

3.2. The Contractor shall complete and submit an annual report no later than 60
days after the end of each state fiscal year that includes, but is not limited to:

3.2.1. A complete orooram overview.

3.2.2. Accomplishments towards"program goals"ancJ"performance measures.

3.2.3. End of year financial report, including revenue reinvested.

4. Performance Measures

4.1. The Contractor shall collect a completed evaluation sheet from no less than
85% bf participants who attend a training event.

4.2. The Department will monitor performance of the contract by trainee
satisfaction survey results that reflect an 85% or higher rating of trainee
satisfaction through evaluation results submitted.

4.3. The Contractor shall actively and regularly collaborate with the Department
to enhance contract management, improve results, and adjust program
delivery and policy based on successful outcomes.

4.4. The Contractor may be required to provide other key data and metrics to the
Department, including client-level demographic, performance, and service
data.

4.5. Where applicable, the Contractor shall collect and share data with the
Department in a format specified by the Department.

5. Additional Terms

5.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes

5.1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state or federal legislation
or court orders may have an impact on the Services described herein,
the State has the right to modify Senrice priorities and expenditure
requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance
therewith.

5.2. Federal Civil Rights Laws Compliance; Culturally and Linguistically
New Hampshire Alcoho( and Drug Abuse Exhibit B Contractor lniiials-/>^2^
Counselor Association d/b/a New Hampshire
Training Institute on Addiclive Disorders O lu I ■^/\
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Training for Alcohol and Other Drug (AOD) Workforce

EXHIBIT 8

Appropriate Programs and Services

5.2.1. The Contractor shall submit, within ten (10) days of the contract effective
date, a detailed description of the communication access and language
assistance services they will provide to ensure meaningful access to their
programs and/or services to persons with limited English proficiency,
people who are deaf or have hearing loss, are blind or have low vision!
or who have speech challenges.

5.3. Credits and Copyright Ownership

5.3.1. All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other
materials prepared during or resulting from the performance of the
services of the Contract shall incJude the following statement. "The
preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract
with-the-State-of-New-Hampshire,-Departmeni-of-Health-and-Human.
Services; with funds provided in part by the State of New Hampshire -
and/or such other funding sources as were available or required, e.g., the
United States Department of Health and Human Sen/ices."

5.3.2. All materials produced or purchased under the contract shall have prior
approval from the Department before printing, production, distribution or
use. ■

5.3.3. The Department shall retain copyright ownership for any and all original
materials produced. Including, but not limited to;

5.3.3.1. Brochures.

5.3.3.2. Resource directories.

5.3.3.3. Protocols or guidelines.

5.3.3.4. Posters.

5.3.3.5. Reports.

5.3.4. The Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the
contract without prior written approval from the Department.

6. Records

6.1. The Contractor shall keep records that include, but are not limited to:

6.1.T. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data
evidencing and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by the
Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all income received
or collected by the Contractor.

6.1.2. All records shall be maintained in accordance with accounting
procedures and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all such
costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and

New Hampshifo Alcohol end OrvB Abuse E)hibil B Contraclof Iniiials /M
Counselor Assodaiion d/b/a New Hampshire
Training Inslitute on Addictive Disorders ^ ) j
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Training for Alcohol and Other Drug (ADD) Workforce

EXHIBIT B

to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original
evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers,
requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of in-kind contributions,
labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

6.2. During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services,
and any of their designated representatives shall have access to all reports
and records maintained pursuant to the Contract for purposes of audit,
examination, excerpts and transcripts. Upon the purchase by the Department
of the maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon
payment of the price limitation hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations
of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as, by the terms of the
Contract-are to-be performed after-the end of-the lerm of-this Gontract-and/or-

•  - -survive the-termination of the Contract)" shall'terminate, provided however,
that if. upon review of the Final Expenditure Report the Department shall
disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder the
Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of
such expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the
Contractor.

New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse Exhibit B Contractor Niials
Counselor Association d/b/e New Hampshire

Training Institute on Addictive Disorders
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Training for Alcohol and Other Drug (AGO) Workforce

EXHIBITC

Payment Terms

1. This Agreemerit is funded by:

1.1. 36.74% Federal Funds

.1.1.1. Substance Abuse Prevention & Treatment Block Grant
(SAPTBG). as awarded on 10/1/19. by the Department of Health
and Human Services, Substance Abuse and Mental Health
Services Administration (SAMHSA). Center for Substance Abuse

. Treatrhent. CFDA 93.959. FAIN TI083041.
1.1.2. NHState PpioidResponseGranl(SOR). as awarded on 9/30/18.

by the Department of Health and Human Services, Substance
Abuse and Mental Health SerS/ices Administration (SAMHSA),
Center for Substance Abuse Treatment. CFDA 93788 FAIN
TI081685... -

. 1.1.3. KiH PartneTshlp for Su^ss Initiative Grant (PFS2) as avrarded on
9/30/15. by the Department of Health and Human Services.
SubstarKe Abuse and Mental Health Services Adnrilnistralion
(SAMHSA), Center for Substance Abuse Prevention CFDA
93.243, FAIN SP020796.

.1.2. 47.68% Other Funds (Governor's Commission on Alchohol and Other
Drugs).

■■ 1.3. -15.58% General Funds.

2. For the purposes of this. Agreement, the Departirwni has identified the
Cdntractor as a Contractor, in accordance with 2 CFR 200.330.

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures
in.^rred In th;e fufftllment of this Agreement, and shall be In accordance with
the approved line item, as specified in Exhibits C-1. Budget through Exhibit C-

,  2, Budget. : -

4.: The Contractor shall submit an invoice in a form satisfactp^ to the State lay the
twenUeth (20lh) woridng day of the following month, unless otherwise specified
yvhich identifies and requests reimbursement for authorized expenses incused
in the prior month. The Contractor shall ensure the Invoice is completed, dated
and relumed to..the Department in order to initiate payrnent. Invoices ishall be
net any other revenue received towards the services billed-in fulfillment of this

. agreement.

.4.1. ■ Backup documentation shall include, but is not limited to:

4.1.1. General Ledger showing revenue and expenses for the contract. .

New .Hampshire Ala^oi and ExKbac Cori.raciof
Counselor^ Assocletion dAVe New Hampshire
•Training Institulfi bih Addictive Disorders •
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Training for Alcohol and Other Drug (AGO) Workforce

EXHIBIT C

4.1.2. Timesheets and/pr time cards signed by both employee and
supervisor that support the hours employees worked for wages
reported under this contract.

4.1.2.1. Per 45 CFR Part 75.430(0(1) Charges to Federal awards for
salaries and wages must be based on records that accurately
reflect the work performed.

4.1.3. Per 2 CFR 200.430 (iii) Labor records must reasonably reflect the
total activity for which each employee Is compen^ted, showing
percentages for time spent on activities under this coritract and all
other activities (totaling no more than 100%).

4.2. The following backup documentation may also be requested as needed;
4.2.1. Invoices supporting expenses reported.

4.2.1.l. Per SAMSHA.requirements, meals are generally unallowable-
uriless they are an Integral part of a-conference granl-or-r
specifically stated as an allowable expense in the FOA. :Granl

.  funds may be used for light snacks, not to exceed $3.00 per
person for clients.

4.2.2. Cost center reports, submitted only as requested by the
Department.

4.2.3. Profit and loss report, submitted only as requested by the
Department.

5. In lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic sigr^ture and
emailed to invoicesforcontracts@dhhs.nh.qov. or invoices may be niailed to:
Contract Manager for RFP-2021 -BDAS-05-TRAlN
Department of Health and Human Services
Bureau of Drug & Alcohol Services
105 Pleasant SUeet, Main BIdg.. 3rd Floor North
Concord. NH 03301

6. The State shall rnake payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt
of,each invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted Invoice 8r>d if
si^iclent funds are available, subject to Paragraph 4 of the General Provisions
Fbrm Nurnbier P-37 of this Agreement.

7. The final Invoice shall be due to the State no later than forty (40) days after the
cpritracl completion date specified in Form P-37. General Provisions Block 1.7
Completipn Date.

8. The Contractor must provide the services in Exhibit B, Scope of Services. In
compliance with funding requirements.

Now H«mp»hlr« Alcohol or»d Drug AbuK E«hibitC
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Training for Alcohol and Other Drug (AGO) Workforce

EXHIBIT C

9. The Confractor agrees that funding under this Agreement may be. withheld, in
whole or in part In the event of non-compliance with the terms and conditions
of Exhibit B, Scope of Services.

10. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that
funding under this agreement may be withheld. In whole or In part, in the event
of non-compliance with any Federal or State law, rule or regulation applicable
to the services provided, or If the said services or products have not been
satisfactorily completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of this
agreement.

11. Notwithstanding Paragraph 17 of the General Provisions Form P-37, changes
limited to adjusting amounts within the price limitation and adjusting
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years and budget class lines through the
Budget Office may be made by vmtten agreement of both parties, without
obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive-Council.-if needed and:

-^justified.- — • • - ~ -

12. Audits

12.1. The Contractor is required to submit an annual audit to the Departrnent
'' If any of the following conditions exist:

12.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in
federal funds received as a subreciplent pursuant to 2 CFR .Part
200, during.the most recently completed fiscal year.

12.1.2. Condition B - The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to the
requirements of NH RSA 7:26, Hl-b, pertaining to charitable
organizations receiving support of $1,000,000 or more. .

12.1.3. Condition 0 - The Conlraclor is a public company and required by
Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to submit
an annual financial audit.

12.2. If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual single audit
performed by an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA) to the
Department vyithin 120 days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal
year, conducted in accordance with the requirements of 2 CFR Part 200.
Subpart F of the Uniform Administrative Requirements. Cost Principles,
and Audit Requirements for Federal awards.

12.3. If Condition 8 or Condition C exists, the Contractor shall submit an
anriual financial audit performed by an independent CPA within 120
days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year.

12.4. In addition to, and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the
Contract, it is understood and agreed by the Contractor that the

iaH C/yW -New Hampshire Alcohol gnd Or\ig Abuse EihitMC ContrTctc inkists
Ccunselorft AssodaUon d/b/e New Hempshire
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Training for Alcohol and Other Drug (AOD) Worlcforce

EXHIBIT C

Contractor shall be held liable for any slate or federal audit exceptions
and shall return to the Department all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken, or which have been
disallowed because of such an exception.

N«nv H»mp*h;r» Afcohol and Orvfl Abuso C Conlracta IntfiaJl ^2?^
Counaeloiri Aasodalion d^a Now HampsWre
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Exhibit C-1

Budget
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New NempshlroOepartment of Health and Human .Servlcaa
Exhibit 0

certification regarding DRUQ-FREE ̂ ^ORKPLACE REQUlREMFt^R

"'l 112 rt^^' ® Contractof's repfosonlativo, as WenUfiod In SocUoris' •11-Sno 1.12 of the General Provisions execule the following Certlficaljon:
ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION . CONTRACTORUS DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

regulatiors implementing SccUons 5151-5160 of Ihe Oruo-Free
Workplace ̂  of 1986 (Pub. L. 100-890. TiUe V, Subdlle 0 41 U.S.C 701 et sen i Thn i^iam -ai

2?68iT691i"^™ emended and published as Part II of Ihe May 25.1990 Federal Register (^gescertification by grantees (and by inferenco. sub-grantees and^b-
contractors), prior to award, that they w>8 maintain a drug-free workplace Section 3017 fwn/ri nr ik^ ••

.rnay elect.to.make one certification to ihn nAnnrimAni in r. ..

'e'Wicalioo. The certificale set out below is a""t^tCTal represCTtalion o( fact upon wtiich reliance Is places when ttie ajency awards the orant False
certrto^ or wolaton of the certllicallon shall b. around, for suspensZ^paSs Ls^sl^^
s " 3°""'"'®"'"''® s'«Pe"«'on Of dobarmant, CooPactors.usIn^ this form should

' CommlMioner
NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Streot..
"Concord. NH 0^301-6505

1.

1.1.

The gran^ Mrtifios that it w» or will continue .to provide a drug-free workplace by;
^blishir^ 0 statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture distribution

or use of a controlled substance Is prohlbiled in the grantee's '

. prowStiOT be taken against employees for violaUon of such
1.2. Esta^hing^.ongoing.drug-free awareness program to inform employees about -

, 1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace-
I o"?' • drug counseling, rohobilital>on..ond employee assistence Droarama- and.2.4. The penalttos that may be Imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring m the workplace;
i <3.

i.4.

P'rfomance of the grant be
grven 0 copy of the Statement required by paragraph (a)-

"" Oy paragraph (a) that, as a condition ofemplo)4nenl under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1'. - Abide by the terms of the statement: and
1.4.2. •* .No^ the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a .viotoUon of a Criminal drug

statuto occurring in the workplace no later lhan five calendar days after such '"
conviction; • . '

1.5. N^fying the a^ncy In writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under ■ - '
Otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction

convicted employees must provide notice. incJuding position tide, to every grant
officer or> whose grant activrty the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency '

EihlWP-CertilicabonfegafAnoDrugFrM Vcodor Initlilt
Workplace ReQutr«n«nU — ■—:—cuOHHsrnorij.. P#pelof2: D



New Hampshire Oepertment of Healtti and Human Services
EihibltO

:h3s destgnated a central point for the receipt Of such notices. Notice shall include the
Identification number^s) of each affected grant;

. 1 T^ing one of the foOowing actions, within ZO calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee wlio is so convicted
1.6.1. TaUng appropriate personnel action against such en employee, up to and indudlng

iterminatipn. consistent with the requirements of the Rehabflltalion Act of 1973. as
emended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to pertlcipate satisfactorily in a drug abu^ assistance or
rehat>ilrta1k>n program approved for such purposes by o Federal. State, or local health,
low onforcoment, or other appropriate agency:

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementstion of paragraphs 1.1. 1.2,1.3,1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. Tha grantee may insert in the space provided below the sitefs) for the performance of work done In
connection with the specific grant

Place of Perfonmance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check.□ if there are workplaces on file that ere not Identified here.

Vendor Name:renoor Name.

—  C ^ j
Date Name:

./\J^ 2>rt^
lame: . /

(Ul. .•  • Emibil D - Cortifeation fSfltrdm^ Drug Fro* Vendor InUsb
Workplscs Requirements " 1? t/ 7a-j/\
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New Hampshire Departmem of Hoatth arxf Human Sarvicaa

Exhibit E

CERTtFiCATiON REGARDING LOBBYING

The Ven^ in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisioos of

3?US c 1 w Gwemment wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lb^g. end
10' #?h I- Co^treclor's represenlaUve. as identified in Sections 1 11and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Cer^ication:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION. CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (Indicate eppllcat>le program covered):
•Temporary Asslslanca to Needy Families under Title IV-A
•Child Support Enforcement Program under TWe IV-D
'Social Services Block Grant Pr^ram under Title XX
•MedicaJd. Program under TiUe XIX
•Community.Services BlocK Grant under Tide VI
'Child Care Oevelopmenl Block Grant under Tide IV

the undersigned ceiilfiee, to ̂  t>esl of hb or her knowlodge and belief, that:

1. No Feder^ appropnated funds have boon paid or win be paid by or on behelf of the undetBianod to . -
any person for in^encing or attempling to Influence an offlcer or employee of any agency, e Member
of COf^ress. an ̂ icer or emptoyea of Congress, or an employe© of a Member of Congr^s in

■  " continuation, renewal, amendment or •modiflcalJDn of any.Federal contract, gram. loan, or coopefalive agreef7>enl (end by specific mention
sub-grantee or sutxontractor). ' r »-nicmon

appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for ',
mnu^dng or attempting to mfluance on officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress

•  °1 employee of a Member of Cor^ress In connection with thb'Fedwal contact, grant loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-
^troctor). the undersigned shall complete end submit Standard Form LLL. (Dlsdosufe Form to
Report Lobbying. In accordance with its instructions, attached and Weniifled as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

■ 3. The undersign^ shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
5Ub-3wrds at all tiers (Induding subcontracts.'sub-grants, and contracts under grants

loans, and cooperstiye agreements) and that ail sub-recipients shall certify and disclose ocoordingly.'

This certJf|caiioo b a materlN representation of fact upon wtiich reliance was placed when this transaction ' ■
was mode or enter^ Into. Submtesion of this certification Is a preroquislte for making or cnttjrfng Into this

^-f' *0 the requiredcertJfication shall be subject to a ovil penalty of noi loss than $10,000 and not more than $100 000 for
each such failure. w.vw

t- i-MO
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New Hampshire Department ol Health and Human Services

Exhibit F

CERTIFICATION REQARDINQ DEBARMENT. SUSPgMSIQN . *
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTFRS

The VerMJof'idcnlified In S^ion 1.3 o< the General Provisions agrees to comply with &ie provisions of "
Executive Offi« of fre President. Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Oebarrhent. '
Suspension, arid Other ResponslWUty Matters, and further agrees to have the Conlraaof's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the followino
Certificatloh: - '

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. By signing.and submitting this proposel (contract), the prospective primary parddpanl is provWlno the

certiflcstion set out betow.

2. The Inability of a person to provide the certJfication required betow witi not necessarily result In denial
of participation In this covered transaction. If necass<^. the prospective partidpant shall submk an

.  expiration of why it cannol provide the certification. "Hie certfflcaUon or exptenetion will be
considered In connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services* (DHHS)
determlr^ation whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
Pjr(!clp^ttofumi^acertrfIca.lionj)r_8n,expldna1lonshaIldisquaWy.8Uch person. from.participaUon. In

,  .tfu.s . ' "

3. The certification In this clause Is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
w^ DHHS dotermin^ to enter into this transaction. If It is later detefmlncd that the prospective •
primary partidpant kndwngly reared an erroneous certiflcstion. In addition to other remedies •

• available to (he Federal Govemmern. DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause' or dofaulL '

4. The prosp^ve primary part'ictpani shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (conlrad) (s submitted if at any time the pfospectlvo primary perildpant leems
•thai its ceniftcatton waa erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms ̂covered transaction.' "debarred,* 'suspended.' "inellgibie." 'lower tier covered
transaction.' 'partidpant.' 'person," 'primary wered transaction.' 'prindpai.' "proposal,' and
Voluntarity excluded.' as used In this clause, have the meenirtga set out in the Definitions and ■ •
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. iSce the

.  attached defmltlons.

6. The prospective primary partidpant agrees by subrnitting this proposal (contract) that, should the •
pfopt^d covered transaction be entered Into, 11 shall not krtowlngly enter into any lower tier, covered
transactiori with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared Ineligible, or voluntarlty excluded " -
from paitidpatioo in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submtttir>o this proposal that it wflj include the
-dause titled 'Certiftcatlon Regarding Oebarment. Suspension, IneligibUity and Voluntary Exdusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions.' provided by DHHS. wlihout modlfrcatlon. In all lower tier covered .
transactions and in ell soGcitations for lower tier covered transaclions.

, 0. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant In a •
lower Her covered transaction that it is r>ol de^rred. suspendeid. incliglbla, or Involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless It knows that the certification is erroneous. A partidpant may
decide the method end frequency by which It determmes the eligibility of its principals. Each
partidpant may, but Is not required to, check the Nonprocuremeni List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained In the foregoing shaB be construed to require esleWishmenl of a system of records
in order to render in good faim the certification required by ̂ is clause. The knowledge end -

Exhibit F-CtfVficstionReBBrdirig Oebarrnerit. Suspension ' Vendor biitiatB
And Other RespontlbiBiy Uan«n ' O iJ t h.
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infc^lwh 0# a, participanl is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent •
person In Uie ordinary course of business deairngs.

10. Except for lransaclions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instfuclions. If a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower ber covered transaction with a porsoo who ie
euspended. dobcrred, tnellgibJo, or voluntarlty exduded from participation In this iransacUon In

,.eddtt)on to other remedies available to the Federal government. DHHS may terminate this trahsactron
for cause or dofauH.

PRIMARY COVERED TRAWSACTIONS

.11. Thepfoe^ctiveprimaryparticipanlcoftifiestolhebestcfilsknGwlodaeandboUef thathandlts
principals:
.11J. arenotpresentlydebarred. suspended, proposed for debarmont. declared indigibie. or

voiuntiarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency*
11.2. have not within a three-year period precading this proposal (contract) been convkrfed of or hod

a cfvfl judgment rendered against them for commfsslon of fraud or a crlmlr^alo'ffensd.ln '•  connection with obtaining, eftempling to obtain, or performing a public (Federal. State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction: violation of Federal or Stale antitruet;
statutes o^.c<^teslonj^.emt^gltm.ent.,thpp.;()rgery.>ribery.Jalsrncatk>n.or.destruction.of

1' false statements, .or.recelvlng.stoten.property. .
•  11.3. aranet^escntlyJndicted^otherwjsocdmlnallyGrdvlliycharBedbyagovernrtintalen^

(Federal. Stale or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated In paregraph (l)(b)
• of this certification; and

11.4. have not wtthln a ihree-yoar period preceding this epplication/proposal had <¥)e or more put>Jic
„ transactions (Federal. State or local) termlnatod for causa or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant Is unaWe to certify to any of the statements in this
certificaiJon. such prospective participant shall attach an explanebon to this proposal (conirect).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
.13. By signing and submi^g this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower Her partlcipanL as

defined In 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its prindpals* '
13.1. are r»ot presently debarred, suspended, proposed for determent, dedared inellgibJe. or

vdunlanly exduded from partidpatioo in this transaction by any federal d^artmonl or agency.
13.2. where the prospective tower tier partidpant Is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective partidponl shall attach an explorwlton to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lovw tier partidpanl further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) thai it wID ••
Indude tfw dause entitled fortification Regarding Dobarment. Suspension, Ineliglbility, and
Vclunlaty Exclusion .Lower Tier Covered Transactions.' without modification in aQ Ibwar tier covorod
transactions and In aO solidlations for tower tier covered transactions.

Vendor Name A.jp

■  ■■ . Nam'e:

Exhbil F - Cwtlfkation RegaoHng Oebafmeni Suspension Vendor
. And OOttr RtaponsEblBTy MsDofs
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CERTtFtCATlOW OF COMPUANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAtNING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINAHOM. EQUAL TRPATMPliT nc CAWu.PAccn

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS ^ ^

The y^or idcnUftcd in Sei^on 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the. Contrsctor'e =
representative as lOontlfied in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions to execute the followino
oerlifeat^: . . . »

VerKfor w|B. compiy. and wHI require any subgrantoes or subcontractors to comply, with any ̂b'cabie
fedoratnondiscn'rthetioo requiremertta, which may Include:
• the Omnttws Crime Control and Safe Streets Ad of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits •
recipients'of federal funding under this statute from discnmii^lng, either in employmenl practices or In
the delivery of ̂ ces or benefits, on the basis of race, cotor. religion, netionai origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain^ redplants to produce en Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Ad of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the crvil nghts pbGgations of the Safe Streets Act Rociplenis of federel funding under tWs
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either In employment practices or in the delivery of services or

...bcnefits..,on.the basis of.race..color..religion. natiDoat.origln..and 6cx..,.ThoAct Inciudes-EquaJ

... EmplovTnentOppoftunity..Plan requirameois:

- the Civil Rights Act of 19W (42 U.S.C, Section 2(X]0d. which prohityte recipients of federal ftrmncial ■
assistance from dtscflmindtjr>g on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any progrem or activity);
. the Rehabilitalton Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794). which prohtoto redpients of Federal finanda!
essJsteoce from d'tscrimlnating on the basis of sability. in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits; in any program or activity:

- the AmericfiTO with Olubiiilies Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34). which prohibits
discrimtndion and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities In employment Stale and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, end transportation;

• the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681.1683.1685-86). which prohtoits
discrlmmetion on the besis of sex in federally essisted education programs;
- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age.in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment dlscriminatidri;

r 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Departnwnt of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Departmertt o# Justice Regulatioris - Nor>dtecfiminatlon; Equal Employment Opportunity. Policies
and Procedures); Executhre Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based end' community
organlzBtiofw): Executive Order No. 13559, which provide furvJamcntal principles and policy-making
critvla for partr>er8hlps with faith-based and neigh^rhcod organizations:

- 28 C.F.R. PL 38 (U.S. Departmenl of Justice RegulaHorts - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); end Wholleblowof protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
^(NDAA)fpr Fiscal Year 2013 (PiA, L. 112-239, enacted January 2. 2013) the PllolProgrmi for
Ery^ancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing ectivilies in connection with federal grenU and contracts."

.The certificate set out below is a maferial representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
ogency award# the grant. Fatee certification or violation of the certiTication shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or lermlrwlon of grants, or governmont wide cuspension or
debarment.

EihWG-
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Ihjhe evMt 8 Federal Of State court or Federal Of State adrninistrative agoncv rnakes a findino of

Tho Vendor identifi^ in ̂ ion 1.3 o»th« Genera) ProvisiotB agrees by tianalufeot the ConiraHn,-.
;:s' ^ p-xt" :i.erv,oCsrc;^n8

Vendor Name; //// ..

"""^' ~ ■" J - —~~

ExhMG
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Exhibit H

CERTIFICATION REGAWDIWfi EMVIRONMENTAI TOBACCO SMQKF

f^bBc Low 103-227, Port 0 - Envlronm^tal Tobacco Smoke, also known es the Pro:ChiWren Ad of 1994
(^). requlrea l^l smoking not be permined In any porHoo of any Indoor facility owned or teased or ■
con^ctod for by an ehtily and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education
Of library services to children under the age of 18. if the services are funded by Federal prxigrama either
dire^y or through State or local governments, by Federal grant conlrect, Joan. <y loart guarantee. The
law not apf^y to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded sdely by
Medjcara or Medlcaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpalient drug or alcohol treatment' Failure

*^th the provisions of the law may result In the imposition of a dvil monetary penalty of up to,
¥1000 per day and/or the Imposilion of en adminlslrativo conr^pSiance order on the responsible enOty.

Vendor Identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by sigrwturo of the Contractor's
representalivo as identified In Sectioni. 11 and i.12ofihe General Provisions to execute the folJowino
certificatloh; ' .

1. fly signing and submitting this contract the Vendor agrees 1o make reasonable efforts to comply with
aLapplicabie provisions of PubHc.Law.103r227. part C. known as the.Pro-Chlldren Act.of.l994..

Vendor Name:/</// .

Eshite H - Certircstion Ragardi^ . Vertdor InititLs
EnvfaortmonW TcOow SmoM
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Exhibit I

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY
ACT BUSINESS ASSOCIATE

AGREEMENT

The Vendor idwUfled In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees, to
Health Insurance Portabilrty and Accoontattiity Act, Public L0w iO4-19l end .

with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Indivldualiy identifiable.Health Information. 45
CFR Ffarts 160 and 164 applicabte to Ixjslness associates. As defined heroin. 'Business
Assodale" shall mean ihp Vendor and subcontractors and agents of the Vendwr that receive,
use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement ond.'Covofed .Entity"
shall mean the State of New. Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

(t Peftnltions.

a. 'Breach' shall have the s^e meaning as the term "Breach* in section 164.402 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulatlorts.

b. 'Business Assodale' has Ihe meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45. Code
■ ■ "'dfiPisder'arRegulationsT ~ " " " " * ."

c. . !QQ5££££jL£nliiyl has the meanlr^ given such term In section 160.103 of Tllie 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. 'Designated Record Set'shall have the same mear^ing as the term "designated record set"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. 'Data Aaoreoatlon' shall have the same meaning as the term 'data aQgrooation' In 45 CFR
.Section 184.501,

f- 'Health Care Qpefations' shall have the same mAaning ag iHa larm ■K«.ahK
■.:ln45,CFRSeclion 164.501.

g., "■HITECH Act* means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Oinical Health
Act. TrtleXlll, Subtitle D. Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Ad of
2009.

b- "HiPAA" rrieans the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996. Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information. 45 CFR Parts 160. 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. 'Individual' shall have the same meaning as the term "individual" in 45 CFR Section. 160.103
and shall Include a person who quelrfies as a personal repfesentalivo in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164;501(g).

j. 'EayaciBulfi'Shall rnean Ihe Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Heailh i
Inforirnation at 45 6FR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Depar^ent of Health and Human Services.

k- 'Prr^ected Health Information" shall have the same meaning as the term 'protected health .
infonnatk)ri" .in 45 CFR Section. 160.103, llmllod to .the Information created or recejved by

.  Bu^neiss Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.
3^2014 ExftWH Venter Mtbb
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•  ExhIbHl

I. ^eouired-bv Law* shall have the same meaning as the terrn 'feguirRH hy law* in r.pa
SecUon 164.103.

m. 'Secretary'shall meari the Seaelary of the Department of Health end Human Services or
his^ef desighee.

n. . "Security Rule' shall niean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Inforn^tion at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments.thereto.

0. 'Unsecured Protected Health Information' means protected health information that.la not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health lnformatk>n unusable,
unreadable, or ind^pherable to unauthorized Indtviduals and is develop^ or endorsed by
a standards developing organization.that is accredited by the American National.Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All tenms not otherwisfl defined herein shalUiavR me mflaning^_ .
established urider 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, '162 and 164, as am^ded from'tirne to time, and thie
HITECH" " - ■ ■

• Act

(2) Buslrwsa Aasociala Use and Disclosure o# Protected Health Infonhatlon.

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Heaiilh
Iniformation (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outliried under

,  : Exhibit, A of the Agreement. Further. Business Associate, induding but hot limited to all
Its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transrnH

PHI In any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disdosa PHI;
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by taw, pursuant to the terms set forth In paragraph d. below; or ■
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of.cbvered

■  ■ . Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to di^ose PHI to a
third party. Business AsscK:iate must obtain, prior to making any such dlsc^ure,. (I)
reasonable .assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially, and '
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for wtiich It was.
disdosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to rtotify Business .
Assodate,. in accordance wtth the HIPAA Privacy^ Security, and Breach Notification '
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI. to the extent it has obtained
kr>ow4edg0 of such breach.'

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHl in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law. without first notifying;
Covenad Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclodJ>'9
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business

S/30t4 Eih!ki*l I Vandu''Mliah
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Exhibit I

Associate shail refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

6. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to.
be bound by additional resthctions over and above those uses of disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Busiixes Associate'

. shall be bound by such additionaf restrictions and shall not disdose PHI In violatioh of
such Qdditlonal restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) . Obltaatlohg and ActtvWes of Business Associate.

a. The Business ̂ spciate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer imrinediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected,
health Information not provided for by the Agreement Ir^uding breaches.of unsecurtd
protected health Information arut/or. any security incident that rhay have an impact on the

--protected health inforrTtation of the Covered Entity. -

b. The Business Assodate shall Immediately perfonm a risk assessment It becomes
aware of any of the above situations. Thie risk assessment shall indude. but not be
limited to:

o The nature and extent of the protected health informatiori involved. Including the ;
types of Identifiers and the likelihood of re-identificatlon;

o The unauthorized person used the protected health Informaiion or to whom the
dlsdosure was made;

o Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
0 The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within-46 hours of the
breach and immediately report the fir>dlngs of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Assodate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy. Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its Internal policies and procedures, books -
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHt received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Seojrity Rule.

e. Bus'^ess Associale shall require all of its business assodates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disdosure of PHI contained herein, induding
the duty to return or destioy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (1). The Covered:Entlty
shall be cbn^dered a direct third party benefidary of the Contractor's txjsiness assodate
agreements with Contractor's Intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI : .

VJOii ■ E-hlblil Vcooor InJUBB _
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. pursusnl to this Agfcement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business assodates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of. the standard

... contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for ih© purpose of.use and disclosure of
protected health Information.

f. Wilhiri Hve (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered &tity,..
Business Associate shall make available during normal tKJSiness hours at its ofTices a!)
records, trooks. egreernents, policiM and procedures relating to the use and disclosure"

. of PHI to the Covered Entity, for pun^oses of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a.written request from Covered Entity,
Busine^ Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual In order to.meet the

.  requirements under 45 CFR Sei^on 164.524.

h. , Wlthln.ten (1C)) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
" amendment of PHror aTecofd"about a wntalned lri a'Desighated/Rewrt
" Srt. the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for V
. arnendrnerit erxJ incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fuirdJ its
otili^tfons under 45 (5fR Section 164.526.

i. Business Assbaate shall document such disclosures of PHI and Informatiqh relait^ to
diidosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by.ari'

Ir^vldual for an accounting of dl^osures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.628.

j. Wthin ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a ̂
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall.make available
tp Covered Entity such Information as Covered Entity may require to futflH its obligations,
to pro^de an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Se^on 164.526.

k. In the event any individual requests axess to. amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directty from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of respondir>g to forwarded requests. However, If forwarding the
Individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or (he Business
Associate to violato HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Assodale
shall instead resprxid to the individual's request as required by such law and notity
Cdv^ed Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. yvithin ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Busine^.Assodate shall return or destroy, as. specified by Covered Entity, aD PHI
received frc^, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI.' If return or :.
destruction rs not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement. Busir^e^ Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such. PHI to those
purposes thbt make the return or d^truction infeaslble. for so long as Business

V20U . ExMmH ' Vendor VotMb'
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Assbd^te maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole disaetion, requires that the'
Business Associate destroy any or aif PHI. the Business Associate shall ceHify to'
Covered Emily that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4)- : ObltQattons of Covefed Entttv

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any charges or limttaUoc(6) In its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to indtviduais in accordance with 45 CFR Action
1^.520. to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's

.••• use or disclosure of PHI.

t). . Covered Entity shall prompUy notify Business Associate of any changes in,.or revocation -
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate urxJer this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
.164.506 or45 CFR Action 164.508.

Cy: Covered entity shall promptfy notify Business Associate of any resUictions on the use of

II, ... disclosure of PHI th'a't'Cbver'^ Ehtltyhas'agfee'd'to in acconlahce with''4S CFR 164.522.
to the exlent that such restriction may affed Business Associate's use or disclosiiiie of
PHI.

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard lerms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreem^t upon Covered
Entit/s knowtedge.of a breach by Business Asscx:iate of the Business Asspdate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either imrhedietely . ...

.  terminate the Agreerheni or provide an opportunity for Business Assodate to cure the.
alleged.breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity.

. determines that neither termination dot cure is feasible. Covered Entity shall repoH the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) MIscellaneoua

a. Definitions and Reoulatorv References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,

shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
frorri time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to IrKiude this Exhibit I, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Assodate agree to lake such ection as Is
nece^ry to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Cover^ed
Entity to comply with the changes In the requirements of HIPAA. the Privacy and
Security Rule, end applicable federal and slate law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges (hat it has no owrver^ip rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall tie.resolved
to penrut Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule.

3mM4 &>(h2)>ll V»«tdor WtMo
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e. Seorecation. If any term or oondition of this Exhibit \ or the application thereof to any
p6reon(e) or circumstance Is held invalid, such invalidity shaO not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the Invalid term or condition: to this end the
terms and cortdltions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Survlvsl. Provisions In tNs Exhibit I regarding the use ar>d disclosure of PHI. return or
destmcdon of PHI. extensions of the protections of the Agrooment In section (3) I, the
defense end Indemnification provisions of section (3) e artd Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shsQ survive the termination of the Agreement

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Oepaitment of Heetih and Human Services

The State /

Signature of Authorized Representative

Name dMlithorlzed Represmtative

Title of Authohzed Representative

^ 1
Date

_ Name of the Vendo*^ «<'

Signature of AulhorizmJ Representatfve

Name of Authorized RapreBenlative

Title of Authorized Representative

Data
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUMTABIUTY AND TRANSPARENCY
■ACTfFFATA^COMPLIAMCE

The FedemI Funding Accountabilily and Transparency Aci (FFATA) requires prime awardees of IndlvkJuel
Federd grants equat to or greater then $25,000 end awarded on or after Octot)er 1.2010, to report on
data related to executive compertsation and essMlated first-tier 6ut><gr3nl6 of $25,000 or more. If theInitta.l award Is b^w $25,000 but subsequent grant modiflcatlcns result In e total award equal-to or over
$25,i000. the a^d is subject to the FFATA reporUng requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reportirtg Subaward and Executive Compensatlori information), Ihe

Department of Health and Human Services (DHM5) must report the folJowIng Information for any
sul)av«rd or i»ntracJ award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award
3. Funding agency
4'. NAICS code for oontrects / CFOA program mimt>er for grants
5. Program source
6. Avifard title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. LoceUon of the entity
8. .. Principle.plece of performance. _ ... .

.9. Uniqiw idenlifief.of.the.entlty fI>tJNS ff)
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal govemmeni, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

10.2. Compensationjnformaticn is r>ot ab^eady available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in v^lch-
the. award or award arnendment is made.
The Vendor, identified in SojCtior. 1.3 of the Gerwral Provlslortt agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act. Public Law 109.282 and Public Low 1l'0-252,end 2 CFR Perl 170 (Reporting Sulsaward and ExocuOvc Compensation Information), arxj .further agrees
to have .the Co>iitracior^s representative, as identified in Sections 1.1.1 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the foliowing Certification:
The bdow named .Vendor-agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the N H Department
of Health and Human .Services iand to comply with ell applicabie provisiorts of the Federal Finanda!
Accountability* end Transparency Act.

Vendor Name: (PoU/)Aj/rJ
-J

Date Name:

. Erfiibll J - C«rtlf(Cillon ftaflartflns the Pada/ Fundlng Vondw ImtUls ' _
AccourXafaiUy And Trantparoncy Ad (FFATA) C«T^anca .• > i/Ja '^a

,. . . Data' ''
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As the Vendor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that tfie responses to the
bplow listed qirestJons ere true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for-ypur entity is: QOS ̂ *7/3^P

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 60 percent or more of your annual gross revenue In U.S. federal contracts, sut)c6ntracts,
loans, grtmts, sub-grants, endfor cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cocperalive agreements?

X NO YES

If tha answer to #2 above Is NO, stop here

if the answer lo 02 above Is YES,' please answer the following;

3. ...Doee.the public.Kave.accGss to.inlormation about the.compensalion.of.thfi.fizecutiyes.in.yDur.
business or organization through periodic reports fUed under Action 13(a) or 1 S(dj of the Securities
Exchange-Ad of 1934 (15 tj.S.C.78m(8), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of.
.13867 .

•NO YES

1f the answer to #3 above is YES, slop l>ere

If ihe.answer.to 03 above is NO, please answerihe following:

4. The narr>es and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
. organlzatibn are as follows: .

Name:

•Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount;

CUCHHS/I >0'11

EiMbM J - CertiflcBtjon Regarding the Federd Funding
AccDunubi^ty Arxl Transparency Ad (FFATA) Complance

Pdg« 2.oi 2

Vendor Milals

Data

mL
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A. iDefinKions;

The following terns may bp reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1- "6rea^" means the loss of control, compromise, unaulhcrized disdosure
. unaumoraed acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term r^ferTing to
situations where persons, other than authorized users and for an other than
ai^ortzed purpose have access or potential access to personally. identifiable
information, s^elher^ physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health

.  shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach- in sedion
164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

2. Xomputer Security Inddenr shall have the same meaning -Computer Securitv
of-NIST Publieatioo 800.61, Computer Security lnddent -H^Hng- Ouide, National tnstittttetif-StandartJs and-Technology, U:S. Department

0# Commerce.

3. O^fkJenli^ Information' or 'Confidential Data' means all confidential .infonnation
dlst^scd by onq party lo the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistant benefits and personal information indudlng wllhout limitation. Substance
^use Treatment Records. Case Records. Protected Health InforrnatJon and

;  Personally Identifiable information.

■ Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed bythe Stale of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Hurnan (DHHS) or accessed In the course of performing contratted
^ces - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
^te 0( federal law or regulation. This Information includes, but is not limited to
Protected He^th Information (PH|). F>6rsonal Information (PI). Personal Finandal
^formatii^.(PFI). Federal Tax Information (FT!). Sodal Security Numbers (SSN)
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential Information.

4. Jfid User means any person or entity (e.g.. contractor, contractor's employee
^iness associate, subconiraclor. other downstream , user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. -HIPAA"means the Health Insurance Portabihty and AccounlabHity Ad of 1996 and the
r^ulations promulgated thereunder.

potentially violates an cxplidt or implied aecurity policy
Which indudes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to asystem or Its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware •
firmware, or software characteristics vyithout the owner's knowtedge Instruction or •
consent. Inqdents indude the loss of data-through theft or device misplacement; lossor misplocemcnl of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical .or electronic

V5..L«upd«.1(«Srt« • . :
DHHS lnlorm»l>on
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mail, ell of which may have the potential to put the data at risk, of unauthorized
access, um. disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New. Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested,, and
approved, by means of the Slate, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and .hot adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information" (or 'PI') means information which can be used to distinguish,
or trace an indrvidual's identity, such as their name, social security numbeh persbr^l
information as defined in New Hampshire PSA 359'C:19. biometrlc records, etc.,

—  -" alone, or when combined with other personal or Identifying information yvtrlch Is linked•
or linkable to a specific Individual." such as date arxi place of birth, mother's ;rhakleri
name, etc.

9. 'Privacy Rule' shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually ldentlfiat>le H^lth
Inform^ion at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIRAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

.10. 'Protected Health Information" (or 'PHI') has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of 'Protected Health Information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R: §
160.103.

11. "Securily Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Irrformation at 45 C.F.R. Part "164, Subpart C. and amendments
thereto.

12. 'Unsecured. Protected Health Infonmaiion* means Protected Health Information that is
not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Infotmalion

..uriusable, unreadable, or Indecipherabid to unauthorized individuals and Is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is acaedited by.
the M^erican National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use.and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1.. The Contra<^or must not use, disclose, matntain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this.Contract Further, Con^ctor,
Including but not limited to ail'lts directors, officers, employees and agents, must not.
use. disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. the Contractor must not disclose any ConBdentlaj Information in. response to a

vs. Lodt uqpdslo 10/09/16 'EjdvGilK Contrectiylniliali
DHHS Inlorrnslion

m
SicuTfty Ro^uffVT>ent» Oj/.hIa



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirernents

request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by. law,- in response to a
-subpoena, etc.. without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an bpportunitv to
oonsent or object to the disclosure. • ■ '

3. If DHHS notifies the Contraaor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by addltiOTal
.  reactions over and above those uses or dbclosiires or security safeauards of PHI

pureuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor be bound by such
.. addiUwal,resWctions.aryJ must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional

reslrictjons and must abide by any additional security safeguards. • "
4. ^e Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End

User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.
5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for

Ji]y.??)irPyW«.lhat;^e not
.. ̂  6. ■ ^ access to the data toihe-authorized ropmsentattvos'

of DHI:^ for the purpose of inspecting to confirm cdmpliance with the. terms of this
contract.

ir. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

" ̂"P'User is transmltUng DHHS data coritaining
Confidential D^ between applications, the Contractor attests the applicatiohs have • ::  been eval^ted by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security- end that ̂ ^Id
application s encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet. : .

2. Comber Disks and.Portable Storage Devices. End User may hot computer-disks .
w portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of Iransmlttirig DHHS

3. Encfypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Cionfideritial Data If
email ts encfYpted arvJ being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

.  4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. - File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file

. SnuToria':
6. Gr<jjnd Mail Servfco. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via cenifled ground

mall within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.
7. PDA. If End User is employing portable devices .to transmit

Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.
8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open,

vs. L«i uptiai# itm/ia cAihfiK • /HU ■■_  tuiWK Contfaaorinmais
•  • • • OHHS (rrfonrolwn - . ..
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wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private r>etwork (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

0. Remote User Communication. If .End User Is employing remote commurikation to
access, or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
Iristalled on the End User's mobile devlce(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

.10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP). also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User Is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
staicture the Folder and access prtvlleges to prevent Inappropriate disdosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletlon cyde (I.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24

_hpyis).
llrvyireless IDeylces. H Errd Userls transmitting Confidential Data via wlrdessdevlces. an"

=  <l:alaimusl be encrypted to prevent Inappropriate disdosure of information.

III. retention AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Controciof will only retain the data and any derivaUve of the data for the duration of this
•Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data end any ■
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless. lOtherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it wiil not store, transfer or process data collected In
connection. wMh the services rerxJered under this Contract outside of the Unit^
States. This phy^cal location requirement shall also apply in the implementatlbn of
dpud computing, doud service or doud storage capabilities, end includes backup
data arid Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can impact Slate of NH systems
and/or Department confidential Information for ctxitractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for Its End
.  Users m support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic arxl hard copies of Confidential Data
Iri a secure location and identified in.section IV. A2

6.. The Cqritractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Ooud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and

'■®9a'"ding the privacy and security. All servers and devices-must have
currently-supported end hardened operating systems, the latest antFyiral.
hacker,, anti-spam, anti-spyware. and anti-malwarc utilities. The erivironment, as a

VSLettupdakiOWiS EjWM K Cortftcuv
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. whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the Site's
Chief Information Offtcer In the detection of any secunty vulnerabl% of the hosting
infrastructure.

6. .Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Infortnation on Its systems (or Its
sul>-coiitr8ctor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for.
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
Obtain written certlflcalion for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency" and or disaster
recovery operations.-When no longer In useretectTDnic medla contalhlng StBte pf-
NewHampshlre datrshaft be rendered unrecoverable vla.a secure wlpe"pl^^
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media -
saniliaation. or otherwise physically destroying the mklla. (for example
degaussing) as described In NISI Special Publication 800-88. Rev.l, Guidelines
for Media ^Itlratton. National Institute of Standards and Technology. U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify In writing at
time of the date destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
Upon request. The written certification wili include all details necessary to

.. demonsirsle data has been properly destroyed and vaiidatod. Where applicable, ̂
regulatory and professional standards for retention requiremenls will be jointly
evalueted by the State end Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this"
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a .
secure rnethod such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the terminatidn of this ■
Conlract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Date • ;
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the OHHS Data received under this Contract, end eny
derivative data or flies, as follows:

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Departmertt .
cpnfideritial information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of oontracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential iriformation throughout the information llfecyclc. where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) r^anlless of the.,
rnedia used to store the data (i.e., tape. disk, paper, etc.).

V5.Lsttupd3l«.1tWWl8 . EiMbitK CwKTsctorlnllM
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3. The. Contjractof will maintain appropriate authentication. and access controls, to
. contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidentiailnforThation
where-appDcable.

f The Contractor will ensure proper security monltohng capabiNties sr® In place to
detect potential .security events that can Impact Stale of NH,. systems ehd/or
Department confldenllal infomnatlon for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its Er»d
Users in support of protecting Department confldentialinformation.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagemenl
supporting tha services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a

t  L program of an—internal- proces8-or> processes - thatT defines-spedflc-security
expectations.-end-monRoftng-cempHanee to-9ecoftly feqoiremer>ts that-at-e-minimum-
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will vrork with the Department to sign and cornpiy with all appflcable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will to '
compieted and sigi^ed by the Contrnctor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

B. II the Department determines the Contractor te a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 1^.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business. Assoctate /^reerhent
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compitance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at Its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey Is to enable the Department and
Contractor to rhonitor for any changes In risks, threats, and vulnerabHities that may

, occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will to compJetod
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Dcpartrronts disaeiion with agreement by .

..the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey to compleled.wher^ the
scope of the engagement between the Oepartmerrt and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will nol store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States uril^
prior express written consent Is. obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach C^ontractor shaH
make efforts to investigate the causes of the t)reach, prompUy. take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of responto and recovery from .

vs. U*tupchU« 1000/1B EjJuKIK Conlnidof InHinlt ■
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5*.-^

the breach, induding but not limited to: credit monitoring services malBna costs and

applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
mfl^tetn ihl ^ Confidential Information, end must In ail other respects3 (eve) and scope that is r»oi^S
STnot llmit^l!!*^ applicable to federal agencies, including.^ not ilrnrt^ to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C § 552a) DHHS

c"pT'r:^ R^ulations (45 C.F.R. §5b). HIPAA Privaci and Securi" Rules (45
^  govern protections for IndMdualfy Identifiable healthinformaKon and as applicable under State law. uwmnawe neann

maintain appropriate admmistrativerlochRical-and -physical sa^uarUs lu piulect ttiu u/nfidentlatlty ofthe Confldentfal Data and to-

"• must p^ie a^and ̂
2^^. 1 s^nty that Is not less then the level and scope of security reouirefnentsHampshire. Department of Information Technology.
K [^rtmrnT^ '''«'a:''«^ "''-90v/doitA/end(v/lndex.htin
n^rAmfSf^ ? Inflation Technology policies, guidelines; standards andprocurement information relating to vendors.

agrees to malnlain a documented breach notification and irxddent

JIT" and theSlate s S^rity Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses

®  info;5^atiorbr"^.^pT^security mddeni. or suspected breach which affects or Includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

^ C0"'"lenUal Data obtained under this-
n«rf^»h 1 ®Vdioflzed End Users who need such DHHS Data toperform their official duties in oonnection with purposes identified in this Contract..

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced In Section IV A, above
Im^emenl^ to pr^oct Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure..

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. OTsure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI PI <r
Hhi are encrypted and password-protected. ' '

d. send emalb wntaining Confidential Information only If encrypted and belno
sent lo; and b^g receivod by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information. "uo.w,hfcwj lu .

vs.. unupdas 10109/18 e^hhUK ^ /O/7
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e. limit discloeure of the ConfidenHal lnformation to the extent permitted by law.
f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually

idenimabte data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored In an ̂ ea that Is
physicalty end technologically secure from access by unauUiOfized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card kevs

•  btorhBtrfcideniiflers. etc.).

g. only authorized Erxl Users may transmit the Confidential Data, Including any
derivative files containing personally idemifiable infcrmallon.'and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted, at at) times when In transit, at rest, or wheri.
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. In all other instances Confidenliai Data must be maintained, used and
^disclosed., using .appropriate, safeguards,, as ..determined by_a_risk-based.
assessmenl.of Ibacircumsiances.involved

I. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential Information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or IndifBClly through

' a third par^ application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves .the right to conduct ensile Inspections to nroriilor compliance" with this
Contract, including the privecy end security requirements provided in herein; HIPAA,
and other appficaWe laws end Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTtNG

The Contractor must rrotify the Stale's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches Immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section VI.

The Contf^or must further handle and report Inddenls and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notif^tipn

. proc^ures and In accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to. end .
•notwithstanding. Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations ar>d procedures,

,  Contractors procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents;

- 2. Determine if personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;
4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine die risk level of Incidents

and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and

..V5.;LMiypdat«.i(V08ria ^ ExrtbiiK . ContradwInitials ■ ■
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5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and. if so, :identify .appropriate
Breach notification methods, liming, source, end contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated wHh the Breach nodce as well as any mitigation
measures.

Vl.

Incidents and/or Breaches that ImpJicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
appticable. in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer; '

DHHSPrivacyOfric8r@dhh3.nh.gov

,8. DHHS Security CWicer.

DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

vs. Last Updato tOOWAS CxhiVliK
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